FVRLibraries

FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES

AGENDA FOR LIBRARY BOARD MEETING

DATE: Monday, August 19, 2024 at 6:00 p.m.

LOCATION:

In Person: Goldendale Community Library,
131 West Burgen Street
Goldendale, WA 98620

Virtual: Zoom Link - https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3852820936

Meeting ID: 385 282 0936

1. Callto Order
2. Agenda Approval
3. Chair Announcements
4. Public Comments (limit 2 minutes each person)
5. Consent Agenda
a. Approval of July 15, 2024 regular meeting minutes
b. Approval of Claims — July 2024
6. Reports
6.1 FVRL Organizational Report: Alicia Gomori
6.2 FVRL Foundation Update: Rick Smithrud
6.3 Goldendale Community Library Report: Terra McLeod
6.4 Financial Statements — June 2024: Catrina Galicz
7. Business

7.1 Facilities and Finance Committee

a. City of Woodland — Tax Increment Finance Area Proposed

7.2 Policy and Nominating Committee

a. Purchase Card Policy (2" Reading)

b. Purchase Card Policy Attachment A: Purchase Card Agreement
c. Purchasing and Procurement Policy (2" Reading)

d. Resolution 2024-06 MRSC Rosters (2™ Reading)

e. Board Reimbursement Policy (1° Reading)

f. Public Records Request Policy (1°* Reading)

g. Resolution 2024-08 Public Disclosure Indexing (1% Reading)

8. Board Comments

9. Next Regular Meeting: Saturday, September 21, 2024 at 4:00 p.m. at the
Battle Ground Community Library and Zoom

10. Adjournment

Passcode: 070150

Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and
Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

ACTION
INFORMATION

ACTION

INFORMATION
INFORMATION
INFORMATION
INFORMATION

INFORMATION

ACTION
INFORMATION
ACTION
ACTION
INFORMATION
INFORMATION
INFORMATION

2018 Grand Bivd, Vancouver Washington 98661 ¢ 360-906-5000 e fvrl.org

Library locations: Battle Ground, Cascade Park, Goldendale, La Center, North Bonneville, Ridgefield, Stevenson,
Three Creeks, Vancouver, Vancouver Mall, Washougal, White Salmon Valley, Woodland, Yacolt, Yale

Page 1 of 78



/ \\ FVRLibraries |
I I ra rI e S i Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and
FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES |  Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes Kristy Morgan, Chair, Clark County At-Large
7/15/2024 — 6:00 PM Regular Meeting Penny Love-Henslee, Vice Chair, Clark County At-Large
White Salmon Valley Community Library Marie Coffey, Secretary, Clark County At-Large

77 NE Wauna Ave, White Salmon, WA 98672 Mary Ann Duncan-Cole, Skamania County
Sprint/Baker Gallery Vikram Kotwani, City of Vancouver

Hybrid/In-Person Olga Hodges, Klickitat County

Mary Williams, City of Vancouver

Present Board: Kristy Morgan, Penny Love-Henslee, Mary Ann Duncan-Cole, Mary Williams, Olga Hodges (virtual)

Absent: Marie Coffey, Vikram Kotwani

Present Staff: Jennifer Giltrop, Executive Director; Alicia Gomori, Deputy Director; Justin Keeler, Qutreach and

Community Partnerships Director; Ruth Shafer, Branch Manager; Catrina Galicz, Finance Director; Elizabeth Moss,

Branch Manager; John Smetana, IT Specialist; Lynne Caldwell, Collections and Technology Services Director; Dave
Josephson, Facilities and Fleet Director; Lee Strehlow, Human Resources Director; Andrea Scherer, Human Resources
Manager

Remote Access: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3852820936 e Meeting ID: 385 282 0936 e Passcode: 070150 e Phone

Access 206-337-9723

Fort Vancouver Regional Library Business Meeting Minutes
AGENDA:
1. CALLTO ORDER - Chair Morgan called th meeting ot order at 6:00 p.m.

2. AGENDA APPROVAL — At 6:01 p.m. Mary Ann Duncan-Cole made a motion to approve the agenda. Penny Love-
Henslee seconded. Motion approved with 5 out of 5 votes.

3. CHAIR ANNOUNCEMENTS — No Chair Comments.

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS — At 6:02 p.m. public comments began with the following speakers:
Jude Jacobs of Vancouver made a public comment about equity and diversity.
Emily Losness of Vancouver made a public comment about equity and diversity.
Quill Onstead of Portland made a public comment about drag queen story hour.
Margo Logan of Portland made a public comment about her book donation. Admitted Assassin, by Ricky White.
Gary Wilson of Vancouver made a public comment to thank the board for their service and service to children.
Quinn made a public comment about book banning and censorship.
Janet Holdman of White Salmon made a public comment to thank the board for their service.

5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS— At 6:12 p.m. of the recording Mary Ann Duncan-Cole made a motion
to approve the Consent Agenda. Penny Love-Henslee seconded. Motion approved with 5 out of 5 votes.

6. REPORTS
6.1. ORGANIZATIONAL REPORT — At 6:14 p.m. of the recording Jennifer Giltrop highlights:
Administrative Staff Changes: Introduction of Alicia Gomori, new Deputy Director who began on July 1%;
Congratulations and recognition to Lee Strehlow, HR Director, who will retire on July 31* after close to 10 years
of service with FVRL; Introduction of Andrea Scherer, current FVRL HR Manager and who will be promoted to
HR Director starting on August 1°; FVRL continues its recruitment of the Communications and Marketing
Director and the Executive Assistant.

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661  360-906-5000 e fvrl.org

Library locations: Battle Ground, Cascade Park, Goldendale, La Center, North Bonneville, Ridgefield, Stevenson,

Three Creeks, Vancouver, Vancouver Mall, Washougal, White Salmon Valley, Woodland, Yacolt, Yale
Page 2 of 78



2 . = |
/ ! \ FVRLIb |
ioraries |
i | Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and
L \ FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES |  Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

Article in The Columbian on 7/13/24: Thank you to Rachel Reis, Cacade Park Branch Manager, and The
Columbian for a great article that provides insight into the many library programs FVRL provides throughout the
District.

Summer At Your Library: 8,700 registrations have already been received. The goal is just over 10,000
registrations this summer.

Woodland Library Project: The new library is expected to open in October 2024, and the project is progressing
well.

Library Statistics: FVRL continues to see steady growth. The cardholder rate is at 28%,; digital circulation
continues to outpace our physical circulation. However, we understand the importance of physical collections
in our service area, especially in areas that lack internet access. A new statistic has been added regarding
cardholders to show new cards added for minors and adults.

6.2 FVRL FOUNDATION REPORT: At 6:25 p.m. of the recording Rick Smithrud, Executive Director of FVRL
Foundation, introduced Foundation Board Chair Debbie Jennerjohn and the Foundation’s Business
Development Officer Judy Musa. The Foundation has been working with the community and fundraising to
support the Woodland Library project. Rick highlighted that the District has been reimbursed $1.8 Million so
far from a state construction grant, with the remaining $641 thousand reimbursement being processed. In
addition, the Foundation has received several donations toward the Woodland Library naming opportunities. A
recap of the 23/24 fiscal year activites was reviewed, highlighting: the 2023 Authors & Illustrators Dinner with
Dave Baldacci; the Foundation became a 4-start charity on charity navigator; the Foundation received a “clean
audit for the 23 year; in February, the Foundation took the top spot for the most successful “Give Back Day”
ever at the Beaches Restaurant give back fundraiser; and in April the fifth Love your Library event benefiting
the Woodland Library Project was the most successful one. For Summer at Your Library 2024, the Foundation
has received a $10,000 grant from OnPoint Community Credit Union and a $6,000 grant from Umpqua Bank, as
well as multiple other sponsorships from other partners. Thursday, October 17" at the Vancouver Hilton will
be the 2024 Authors and lllustrators dinner featuring NY Times bestselling author Laura Dave.

n

6.3 BRANCH REPORT: WHITE SALMON VALLEY COMMUNITY LIBRARY — At 6:39 p.m of the recording Ruth
Shafer provided an update on library activites at the White Salmon Valley Community Library.

Interim Public Services Director: Jennifer Giltrop thanked Ruth for serving as the Interim Public Services

Director for the last year in addition to her Branch Manager duties.

Stregthen our communities through knowledge, experience and creativity: Michael Bueg shares information

on edible mushrooms in the Gorge; Teens working in a community building Mario Kart Tournatment;

Celebration of 2024 Bookmark Contest winner.

Staff: Big shoutout to the staff who stepped up while | was the Interim Public Services; the team respects each

other and works hard together for our community.

Operations Center: Recognition of all the support teams do to help us. A special thank you to Lee Strehlow

who is retiring and all she has done to help us.

Partners: Women Artist of the Gorge, Friends of the White Salmon Valley Community Library; The White

Salmon Arts Council; Soroptimists International of White Salmon; and many others.

Wild About Nature: Partnership with the Mountainview Grange, 70-80 people weekly in April to learn about

nature themes.

Community Reads: White Salmon Valley Community Library will have two books this year: Crow Talk by Eileen

Garvin and Gifts of the Crow by John Marzluff and Tony Angell.

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 ¢ 360-906-5000 e fvrl.org

Library locations: Battle Ground, Cascade Park, Goldendale, La Center, North Bonneville, Ridgefield, Stevenson,

Three Creeks, Vancouver, Vancouver Mall, Washougal, White Salmen Valley, Woodland, Yacolt, Yale
Page 3 of 78



/ W\ FVRLibraries
’ | Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and
FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES | Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

Friends of the White Salmon Valley Community Library: They are the best Friends, supporting the library from
book sales, ice cream social, youth book discussion support, children’s Halloween bash, bookmark contest,
community reads, wild about nature series, and all sorts of other ways.

6.4 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND HIGHLIGHTS — At 6:48 p.m. of the recording Catrina Galicz highlights the
months ending April and May 2024.
April Statement of Cash: Cash balance in April increased $7.6 million over March, and $2.3 Million increase
over the January cash balance. In April, the Board approved updated Reserve Allocations which are
represented here in the beginning balances. The Woodland Project reserve has used just under $600,000 thru
April.
April Statement of Revenue: Taxes represent just over 87% of the revenue budget. April and October are the
heavy receipt months for property taxes. Revenues thru April meet or exceed our expectations.
April Statement of Expenses: Operating expenditures are expected to be 33% of budget. The majority of
operating expenditures are meeting or exceeding our budget expectations. For Capital Outlay, approximately
$11,000 has been spent on Buildings/Non-Owned; almost $19,000 spent on Buildings/Owned; and $1.4 Million
spent on the Woodland Library Project from grants, as well as $600,00 from cash reserves for the Woodland
Project.
May Statement of Cash: Cash balance increased $1.7 million over April, mostly due to the State construction
reimbursement grant received for the Woodland Library Project. YTD net increase to cash is about $4 million,
which results in the operating cash fund having just under 5 months of operating cash. The reserve balance as
of the end of May for the other funds is just under $9.7 million.
May Statement of Revenue: YTD received 55% of Property Taxes. Most of the revenues are meeting or
exceeding our expectations. Two areas to highlight under Miscellaneous, the Investment Interest is exceeding
expectations at almost 65% and under Foundation Reimbursements (Grants) $1.8 million was received toward
the Woodland Project.
May Statement of Expenses: Budget target through May is 42% and all operating expenses categories meet or
exceed budget expectations. Personnel is at 38% due to vacancies offset by payouts. Supplies, as well as
Library books and materials are under budget, which is a combination of strong budget management and
timing impacts. Other Services/Charges has two line items that are slightly above budget including
Training/Travel which is due to a timing issue and travel arrangements happening early in the year, and
Misc/Dues/Printing/Other is above the target due to annual dues being paid early in the year. The Woodland
Library Project is at just under $3 million paid out to date.

RECEIVE AND FILE APRIL AND MAY 2024 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — At 7:01 P.M. of the recording Penny Love-
Hensleee made a motion to approve receiving and filing the April and May financial statements. Mary Ann
Duncan-Cole seconded. Motion approved with 5 out of 5 votes.

BUSINESS

7.1 FACILITIES AND FINANCE COMMITTEE

a. 2024 Budget Amendment and Cash Reserve Allocation Adjustment— At 7:02 p.m. of the recording the
proposed budget admendment and cash reserve allocation adjustment was presented by Jennifer Giltrop
and Catrina Galicz. The amendment is driven by several factors including: 1. The development and
adoption of the 2024 budget took place during the FVRL Leadership transition; 2. Increased perspective and
analysis on historical revenue trends; 3. Two new Collective Bargaining Agreements
approved/implemented in 2024; and 4. The Woodland Community Library building project budget has been
finalized. Overall, the adjustment increases revenues by $268,288 and increases the use of reserves by

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 ¢ 360-906-5000 e fvrl.org

Library locations: Battle Ground, Cascade Park, Goldendale, La Center, North Bonneville, Ridgefield, Stevenson,

Three Creeks, Vancouver, Vancouver Mall, Washougal, White Salmon Valley, Woodland, Yacolt, Yale
Page 4 of 78



/ \\ FVRLibraries
i I ra rl e S E Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and
FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES | Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

$421,932 for a total impact of $690,220 which is a 1.88% increase over the initial budget adoption. Further
details were discussed as presented in the 2024-07 Staff Report.

2024-07 RESOLUTION Budget Amendment and Cash Reserve Allocation Adjustment: At 8:22 p.m.

Mary Wllliams made a motion to adopt Resolution 2024-07. Mary Ann Duncan-Cole seconded.

Motion approved unanimously with 5 out of 5 votes.

7.2 POLICY AND NOMINATING COMMITTEE

At 7:23 p.m. of the recording Jennifer Giltrop and Catrina Galicz introduced the following policy changes for
1** reading and consideration.
a. Puchase Card Policy (1* reading): Includes changes to address timing of receipts and clean-up of
language.
b. Purchase Card Policy Attachement A: Purchase Card Agreement (1* reading): Includes changes to
align with the Purchase Card Policy revisions.
c. Purchasing and Procurement Policy (1* reading): Includes changes to ensure compliance with the
RCW, Washington Administrative Code, and updating definitions.
d. Resolution 2024-06 MRSC Rosters (1° reading): supports the changes to the Purchasing and
Procurement Policy and provides FVRL the ability to use the MRSC rosters for purchasing. This
resultion would replace the prior resolution for using MRSC Rosters and be in compliance with current

laws.

7.3 Board Meeting Location Change — August 19, 2024 and October 21, 2024

10.

11.

At 7:31 p.m. of the recording, Jennifer Giltrop presented a proposed change of location for Board Meeting
on August 19, 2024, changing from Ridgefield to Goldendale due to the meeting cancellation in June that
was scheduled at Goldendale. The other change proposed is to move the October 21, 2024 meeting from
La Center to Ridgefield. Penny Love-Henslee made a motion to approve the location changes as noted.
Mary Ann Duncan-Cole seconded. Motion approved unanimously with 5 out of 5 votes.

EXECUTIVE SESSION — Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110 (litigation) at 7:33 p.m. of the recording the Board of
Trustees go into Executive Session for 15 minutes. At 8:50 p.m. the Board Returns.

BOARD COMMENT - at 7:50 p.m. of the recording. Kristy Morgan thanked White Salmon Valley Community
Library for hosting the meeting, recognized Lee Strehlow, HR Director, for all her efforts including helping
the Board with hiring a new Executive Director. Olga Hodges wished fairwell to Lee Strehlow, thanked her
for her professionalism, and wished her the best ahead. Penny Love-Hensleee thanked Catrina Galicz for all
of the work she has done in a short time to updates procedures and policies, and also to David Wyatt at the
Stevenson Library for assisting me for meeting support and to Justin Keeler for the ride up here.

NEXT REGULAR MEETING: Monday, August 19, 2024 at 6 p.m. at the Goldendale Community Library. It will
be a hybrid (in-person/online) meeting.

ADJOURNMENT - At 7:53 p.m. moved by Mary Williams and seconded by Mary Ann Duncan-Cole. Motion
to adjourn.

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 ¢ 360-906-5000 e fvrl.org

[l

Library locations: Battle Ground, Cascade Park, Goldendale, La Center, North Bonneville, Ridgefield, Stevenson,

Three Creeks, Vancouver, Vancouver Mall, Washougal, White Salmon Valley, Woodland, Yacolt, Yale
Page 5 of 78



FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY DISTRICT
Approval of Claims
As of
August 19, 2024

As required by RCW 42.24.080 and RCW 42,24.090, vouchers audited and certified by the Auditing Officer of the Fort Vancouver
Regional Library District and those expense reimbursement claims which have hbeen certified as required, have been recorded on
a list and made available to the Board of Directors for approval,

As of this date, August 18, 2024 The Board of Directors, by a vote does approve for payment the following vouchers, warranis,
voids, and efectronic transfers issued

July 1, 2024 through July 31, 2024
Accounts Payable Warrants Issued Numbers 120029 Through 120195 $ 1,836,981.92
Accounts Payable EFT Payments EFT02127 Through EFT02180 $  64,247.59
Accounts Payable Voids Numbers EFT02161 $ (500.00)
Subtotal FVRL General Fund Warrants, EFTS, Voids $1,900,729.51
Payroll Electronic Fund Transfers Numbers 20240710 Through 20240725 § 991167.73
Other Electronic Fund Transfers (Manual Payments} Completed
Vendor Date Amount
ADP Payroll Feos 712612024 $ 4,888.43
WA L& Quarterly 7/31/2024 3 3103594
Kalser HSA 7/30/2024 $  16,154.00
Kalser H8A Foes 7/30/2024 $ 58.50
FNBC Visa 7H7I2024 $ 281533
WA DOR Sales/Uso Tax 712602024 $ 1,205.67
WA DRS - DCP 71102024 ] 4,922.68
WA DRS - DGP 7/26/2024 $ 4,971.82
WA DRS - PERS 711172024 $  79,860.55
WA DRS - PERS 7/26/2024 $  B2675.88
$ 25396378
Total Transactions for Approval $3,145,861.02

DISTRICT LIBRARY - EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

DISTRICT LIBRARY - BOARD PRESIDENT

Page 6 of 78



IWeve
099L
00986
IOELSL
£9°E0L
LO'SHFO'EL
RIS
£EZ6E
Z9008'L2
J0LesL
86'EC
00'sie
8£'662
£1ZHEL
OrLEdL
€8T/
66'£50°C
00092
L9'6LY
05ZsL
£E'S95'7L
2998
L1086
00'080'L
gELe
oo'sel'l
00°2kF'L
97’86
95811
SELEY'/L
SLgeY
£9°Z9%
FLIREL
YLIELOL
11968,
LL'66E
YE6CF'T
YL LEE'6TL
B696OL
PFSSYEL
BELS
L9°06E
00'¥SL
L9'GE

dNOYS ONILIHEVIN ISID

H3LNAD V140 ALD

SNIY ILNYHS

Aftd ALNNOD LV

INI S3DAYAS TYINIWNOYIANT ¥3133
WYHINI

NOLLYHOdUOD INFWIHLTY YINDI
SANAYIS LIATED LOL43d FINOH
HIADVH

INIATT HO0ALNG O

S1dvd OLNV 39409

SMIN J9H0D YIIWMIOD
FTYAN3QIOD 40 ALD
NOLYHOdE0D d31STHINVIA 99
dNOY¥D I

NI LSIM SINILSAS T4

71 °S1oNA0YE AYMYAYTd

QINS3

buequiz Apsune) XNTAYNLNID

2717 '3S3IMHLYON S1HBNOD3

d1 ONELTHEVYIN 1130

TVSO4SIQ HIAN YISIANTOD
SINAY3S FJOVNONYT VIGNNTOD
NYI9NNTOD

ANYAINQD INOSIE YIIWNTOD
DNINIVHL £ 300D

YA - LINIVA QTIOM N30
HLIMIALSYM 9Td A8V 1D

and J¥vi1o

ISV MA -dNOYD LD

TVA - 277 SIWSLSAS NED

VA - D717 SIWFLSAS NED

WA - D77 SWILSAS NdD

1S - D71 SWALSAS WD

W - D77 SWALSAS NgD

27 - D77 SWALSAS iNdD

NOSTHO dNOYD VIAIW YILNIJHYD
DN NOILDNYLSNCD AINTHe
ANNOYED I1LLVE 40 ALID
YOTAVL 2 ¥ivd
SILILN VISIAY

1% 1Y

ONEESIL IDVNONYT VLTV
HI1NAZ DNIJTINE SNATHY

Lozl ¥Zoe/el/l
LIQ0ZL ¥20E/EL/ L
QL00CL ¥eUe/eL/t
690071 ¥202/28/1
890021 #202/ZL/L
290021 ¥202/2t/2
990021 ¥e0e/cL/L

S900TL ¥ee/ei/L.

¥900¢CL ¥202/ei/L
£900TL ¥20Z/eL/L
290021 ¥e0e/ei/L
190021 ¥e0e/et/L
0900¢CL ¥20e/e1/L
65002 ¥Z0e/2i/L
8500¢L ¥e0e/eisL
250021 ¥20e/eL/L
950021 ¥E0C/eL/L
S500TL ¥202/2L/L
¥SO0ZL ¥Z0E/2L/L
£S00T1 ¥202/2L/L
2SO0ZL ¥20e/TL/L
L5002l ¥20e/eL/L
080021 Fe0z/eL/L
6¥00¢L ¥202/2L/L
8Y00CL FEUE/eL/L
L¥O02L ¥Z0€/2L/L
9002l ¥E0e/eL/L
SY00ZL ¥Eoe/el/L
¥FO0CI ¥Z0e/2l/L
£P002L ¥202/2L/L
ra0eL ¥Zoe/eL/
L¥O0ZL ¥20T/2L/L
OFQ0CL ¥Z0Z/eL/L
6E00¢CL ¥20e/2L/L
8E00CL F20E/2L/L
LE00¢CL ¥20e/2L/L
9£00ZL $202/2L/2
SEQ0CL ¥E0T/TL/L
FEOQCL ¥202/21/1
E£002L yeoe/eL/s
CEQOCL ve0T/eL/L
LEQCTL ¥2oe/el/L
Q£00¢CL ¥eue/elL/L

IUBUIARG
WBwWARg
UBWARY
TUBWARY
wewAed
1UaWARg
1UlaWAeg
udwied
aWARY
awied
zawAeg
uduLAey
aEARd
walAey
awied
Blidey
wiauifed
waliied
WRWAeY
JuaLAeg
WiawARY
Wawfed
JsuLARd
WBWARY
Jafed
uawiAeg
JusLARy
JuBLIAEY
aLAed
Jusufed
WawAed
Jawsied
RUETHECN]
WawAzy
uawAed
RUETHTA-F
JuBLUARd
JuaLiifed
WawAey
juauifed
JaLAey
sWABRY
JUBWARY

00037V
£00032V]
100031
2G002ITH
L0003 LA
LOO0Y NI
LGOOYINDI
LOGOINOH
£000MIVH
£00000UD
LEQGHOSD
60002400
£000d709
LOOOYNED
<00031vo
£0003414
LODOGNI
LOOOGINS]
L000vaNI
LG001003
L0007134a
CE00NMI02
¥eaonioD
S000N102
£000N7102
20003402
2Lo0vITS
9Z00Uv1D
7000¥Y 1D
20009112
90005WdD
S000SNdD
POCOSNED
£000SNED
Z0COSINGD
LogosSweaD
2000duvd
LCOOWIYE
LO00LLYY
2000Iive
LOOOSIAY
L0001 LY
ECOOVLTY
LOCOATTVY

¢ Qreopuaj,

Page 7 of 78



1108
599
9973y
00556
022Le
£S08ET
0Z96E'C
EFFyF'SL
6CLL
LSEP6
06'€9¥'02
Le¥ir9'e
olege

o ESY
£4°9EP
L1g8tL
0008L
Wes'y
el
LE'E66
00'60¢
8670059
ca'leE
¥evel
<L’ L06
06°078'E
6¢8.F
SLesy
6C1EE
9e°0L
000SL
S5'26E
09iig'se
LL90¢
ororL
Zl'eelr
SL'E08
6T L6PE
Zaves
6.6y
9’30801
LIPSl

¥ Een’ee
SO'9P9’L
Lsyel’L

YIINID NOLENERILSIA COVIIHDS
JNTT AYNLINGDD

SNIHSIANd LNIOd ¥3LN3>
JNIONILSAL NOSTIVD

THOOIY 1S0d TYONOHSYM-SYINVYD
ONI 'dnOysD NO3I9DENRd

Qlpny Qid a3pin HIRg

HOTAVL B dIAvd

SAILTILN VISIAY

LIA3H) WO NCZYINY

NI 'SIDIAYIS IDNVHOSNT LNVITTY
FNISIY

d3g9d AldiZ

SNOLLdIMISINS X02 1M
ANVIQOOM 40 ALID

NOWTYS JLIHM 40 ALID
DNEOIINLS AFTAIYIITHM
INESNOBLDAINNOD ALSVA
TYONCHSYM 40 ALD

ANVANOZ NOSTIN I HILTYAM
INIZYIYIAL ATIINVA HIANOCDNYA
SANILN YIANOINVYA 40 ALID
INFN

V1OAOL YIANCDONYA

LTOIVA 40 NMOL 3HL

dH0D HOLYATTI ddMINISSAHL
d¥0I ONIHSTENG 1SIM-SHILNTY NOSWOHL
DN 'SIDIAYTS JIDVNYIN ZEVAYNS
NOSNIAILS 40 ALD
INI“21DADINILS

ADINVITIV 3A1dd YA LSTMHLNOS
L# a0d ALNNOD VINVINVYAS
S:NIILISNIENY

40 AL 'G1IH3IDATY

£81# SINAYIS DNaN43d

AlddNS D037 LIv1d

JNI VSN NOLLY2E18Nd NYISY Nvd
IANAYIND

N¥1d JdvD £0d3d IDI440
ANYENGD SYD TVHNLYN 1SIAMHLIMON
3dVL 1SIMAIN

IOIAYES AMVEEN 1SIMAIN

QLT SHOLOVYINOD 13NNV
DNI'dNO¥D INIWADYNYI FHL
HILNID FHIL 9¥MHDS 531

LLLOZL ¥208/92/L
9LL0eL ¥eoe/oe/L
SLLOZL ¥2oe/9e/L
FLLOCL Fe0e/9e/L
£LLOEL ¥20e/9e/L
ZLLOZL #20e/9e/L
LLLOZL ¥208/98/L
OLLOCL Feue/9e/L
60L0ZL ¥20e/9e/L
80LOCL ¥20e/9e/L
10L0ZL ¥202/9¢/L
90LOZL ¥20e/9e/L
SOLOTL ¥ene/eL/s,
FOLOCL venelelL/L
EOLOZL ¥208/2L/L
20LO2L YeuE/eL/L
LOLOZL ¥#20e/eL/L
00LOZL Feue/eL/L
660021 ¥20e/2L/L
860021 ¥20e/2L/E
180021 ¥eoe/2L/L
950021 Feue/eL/L
960021 ¥E0e/TL/L
¥600¢ L v20e/el/L
£600¢1 ¥e0e/ZL/L
60021 ¥20e/eL/L
L8002L ¥20e/2L/L
0560021 ¥20e/eL/L
680021 ¥202/CL/L
8800CL ¥20e/el/L
180021 yeue/elL/L
980021 ¥20e/eL/L
S800CL ¥208/2L/L
¥800CL veue/eL/L
£800¢L ¥20/2L/L
ZB00CL ¥e0e/ZL/L
L800eL ¥20e/eL/L
080021 ¥20e/zL/L
640021 ¥20e/eL/L
840021 ¥e0e/Z1/4
L0021 ¥20e/2L/L
90021 v20e/eL/L
SLOOCL FEOL/EL/L
¥LOOZL ¥202/CL/L
€L002L ¥20¢/eL/L

pIECITER ]
JuaLsAey
WewWAed
aWAed
wBwieg
1uawAed
ualfed
IUSWARY
WAWARH
udufeg
uawied
BUIARY
uauAed
IUBUIARY
wauiAey
wsuieg
JualiAed
wawifed
Jauifed
JuaUiAeg
aAed
WwaLied
RIBETTH A=
walAed
wawiey
WaLAed
JawAey
Wawied
WsLufed
JuaLAey
JUBLIARY
JaAeg
JUBLUARd
auifed
WaLAey
JusWABRY
uBwieg
wsulied
uauifed
uawAed
aWARy
Walfey
Juawieg
JuauAey
Wawfed

FO0ODIHD
60001N3D
L00GINTD
£000THVD
Z000VINYD
S000DUNE
L000Hd4RE
2006V
LOCOSIAY
LOOOZYINY
9000ITY
LGOODSAY
L0GOdIZ
LOGOODIIM
L000ao0oM
LOGOLIHM
900033HM
LOCOLSYM
BFOOHSYM
LO0OLTYA
GCOOINVA
LOOODNVA
LOOONITN
LGOOOAOL
Z00ONMOL
LOOGSAHL
SLOOWOHL
10001031
L000AdLS
<000Y31S
£L00LN0OS
LOCONYIS
LOGO3aNA
5000201y
[000NdTd
LGO0LVId
LOOOYNYd
FO00HIAC
10001440
S0001HON
2000MAaIN
LOOOMAIN
000UV
000NN
1600Ss31

Page 8 of 78



€907
09'699
SHE6LL
£LE6
Yore
00'SHZ
¥eSiEL
909
€00Ls's
06°L8
6182l
2LE6
COEQY'.
0g'169'82
67 LFO'CL
28102’
208669
296
0045981
S9'9ELEL
S6Ck
0S'6EL'T
00°000'L
06'6VE
[ANIAYA
0uoe
So9zL
Ty
L69E2
L08ET
8¥°818
£56E
00°007'L
0056271
P96
§Z9LZ0L
Yo6l6
F8IEIFE
0S2E8'Z
LI9%EY
8€'520'E
159¢¢E
LE06E
LOEP6'L
9r1eg's

(d490D} S1dVd ININNID YdYN
3AIND ¥V dISN YAVN VIV ¥IMO4 ar
SO3AIA B $H008 TYHRLINDHLITINN
YNILSIEH ‘NYDHOW

NI SNOLLIYIOS M

YINYOD INISSIN

IdVL 1SIMamN

IIAYIS AdVHEN 1STIMAIN
HITHN-GIYNOADYIN

YAYNONIN

dNOES SINILEINAVIA ISID
STYRALYIN ONINYYIT THOHSIRYT
T AJONY

WYHON|

ONINGYIT ISYEOINI

YINGLONY ¥3dvé LDVdI
NOILYHOdHOD INFATULETY YN
NI IDIAYIS AT SAYYYH

dNO¥D SINYHNSNI ¥AAONYH
YPAIVH

NO9IHOTH

JT1 INVHINSNYN ATINDS S33d NOQY0D
NATILYY 3T1D

NOILYHOdH0D Y3LSTHINYIA 99
dNO¥D VD

NOILLYANNOS TdAd

71 'SL00G0Ud AVMYAY1d

LO0%:# INI 'SISRIdYIALNT NOSNDHI4
STOUINGD TWINIWNOHIANT
NOILYHOdH03 ¥3LNT

baequiz Ao YNITASNLNTD
NNYAIYIN ‘T100-NVINNG
IIINYHIZN QAT

NOLLYIGIN YiS003a

and ALNNGCD ZLIMOD

SHEOMIIN TYNOILNLIISNI LSYIINOD
d - NIYIN TRIOM NVITD

YA - INIVIN QTHOM NYITD

DL - SNIVIN OTIOM NVITD

DH - LNIVIN TYOM NYITD
D8-LNIVIA QTHOM NVITD
YAM-LNIYIN GTHOM NYITD

QM ~LNIVIN QTHOM Ny TTD
SM-INIYIA QTHOM NYI1D

dnd v

29L0Z1 ¥20e/9g/L
LOLOZL ¥208/92/L
091021 ¥202/92/L
651021 ¥E02/9z/L
851021 ¥e0z/9e/L
LSLOZL v20Z/92/1
951021 ¥202/92/L
SSL0ZL ¥202/9¢/L
PaLOZL ¥202/9e/t
€5102L ¥e0z/9e/L
25L02L ¥202/92/1
LSLOZL ¥20Z/92/.
091021 ¥202/92/L
6¥LOZL ¥E02/92/1
RFLOZL ¥20Z/92/1
L¥LOTL ¥202/9¢/L
9¥LOZL ¥202/92/¢
SFLOCL Y2029/
¥rLOZL ¥202/92/L
E¥LOCL ¥202/92/1
erLOZL ¥20z/9z/L
L¥LOZL ¥202/92/.
OFLOZL ¥202/9e/L
GELOZL ¥E0Z/92/L
RELOZL ¥Z07/92/2
LELOZL ¥202/92/1
9EL0ZL ¥20e/9g/L
SELOZL ¥202/9e/L
VELOZL ¥202/92/1
EELOTL vE0Z/92/L
CELOZL +202/92/1
LELOZL ¥202/92/1
DELOZL ¥E02/92/L
SZLOZL ¥202/9e/L
BZLOZL ¥208/92/L
LZL0Z1L ¥ee/og/L
9ZL0ZL ¥Z02/92/1
SZLOZL ¥E0E/98/L
FPZLOZL t208/92/L
€2LOZL ¥20E/9Z/L
22LOZL ¥E0Z/92/L
L2LOZL ¥e02/9z/L
OZLOZ L veDe/9e/L
611021 ¥e02/9e/L
gLL02L +E02/9z/L

woawied
juawseq
WBWAR]
WwBwAeg
IUBWARY
IUBWARY
wswAied
awied
uawAed
JUSWARY
IUBWARY
pUCIIT N
IHBWARY
RIS
IUBWARY
wduieg
WBWARY
awied
WwBWIARY
wawAed
pFEITH R
JUDUIARY
wawieg
JuaLiieg
Wswied
FUETTHLCH
awfed
JawAe
JuauLied
JUawiAeq
awied
Wauifed
AR
JuawAed
auied
JuaLIARy
wewAiey
wawied
wswied
IUSWARY
wawied
3usWAed
pIECTIECR
JUSWARY
wawied

LO0OVdVN
Z600vAvYN
LOCOLTINN
FO009OHOW
LOGOOSHIN
0L00SSIN
2000MAIN
LO0OMAIN
£0C0aDVYIN
£0009NN
0003721
LOOOAYT
LOO0ONY
LOOOYONI
€LO004NI
Z000YdNI
LOOOYINZI
LOOOHYYH
LOGOONYH
£000MIVH
LO0OYCEZH
FCO0JE0D
SO00TIID
LO0OYNGD
2000T1V0)
20001804
LOCaAanNI4
1000934
€000IANT
LOGOIINT
LOO0YENG
LBO0DNNQ
LG000AZd
20000230
L0 TMO
Z0CO2NOD
0200v3TD>
2L0OVITS
L100V3TD
100V
LLOOYID
QLOOVATS
6000V
L000VATD
FOO0EY12

Page 9 of 78



0005k
CETLY
00009
wrELE
€92
00°0%E
00005
527901
8LBELE

YO LA VIVIN 'NITHO

WVHI0OYd 195

NOSIDNS MIYANY

277 'S3D3A 99

VANVT A8y 1D

SNVHD vsO

SYTODIN "H3LuvD

5334 - LIADIA NVTd LIF3N38 SONYIDITTY

26°186'9¢£8°L

6E°596'9ET
650579
00'8SS'ES
0Ga0L
LELBYL
8LyeEr's
6992¢
39926
TT6ER'T
058F9'¥L
26'9E0'C
9816E
9E’.S
BC6Y'6T
8Fave
09°58¢
[4A1]14
06'SL

FA 417X
89°€
Q0¥LL
QsZL9'L
651
ocoLgt
2l'6e
Le&ss
67 ELO'LY
S2098'y
LFels
85°lsg'se
9cee
LEDEL'L
00007

SjueLiep [B30lang

NV1d HLTYaH NOLLYAONNCA Y3sivi
311 °'dNOYS OAVZ

SLIWYId - ANYIQOOM 40 ALD
TYNOILYNYILNE NIAYH J10M
OT1°MN LLIGYM

ANYINOD NOSTIN 3 d3LTVM
SHIFINMIOA ONITHILS

dNOYS N2IS YIANOINVA
TYIINYHIIN VSN

YIIRAWY 40 O SNi 3410 WNNN
aNTIN

JNI ‘'SH008 INO IVSL

V1O0ACL YIANOINYA

d¥OD HOLVYATTI ddMBINISSAHL
WO23731 salL

YANMEAL “YIFNYININSG
INL'I1IDADNALS

DNIESNOLLMIOS ALRINDIS LNIDYIANOD ATINYLS
DNl QD NDIS YHOS

HSYVIAS

YIANCId ALNNOD VINVINYES
FHOLSHO0F WMHLNIS

0D 1NIVd YO0

AJHDLIY QYVHDIN

1S3MD Apraunog INIT AYNLNTD
dUVL IME/VMAEVYH IS0 EVd
JAMTEIAD

FINVITIV IAVISYD SHEHO

NY1d uvD 10433 321340

23130

DTLI/LALN/DUHS D59 - NI DTOO
ANYIINOD SYD TVHNLYN LSTIMHLIMON
IT1 AHAVHDOLOHd OJHSYN

SELZ0143 F202/2L/L
¥ELE0143 ¥202/2L/L
£E1C014T teae/zL/L
2E120Ld3 ¥2oe/eL/L
LELZOL4T ¥R202/2L/L
0€L20143 veng/eL/i
62120143 ¥eoe/eL/L

82L20143 veng/eL/L.

) £21201453 vene/eL/L
R o

§6L02) veoe/oe/L
P6LOZL ¥e0e/9e/L
€61021 ¥e0e/9e/L
26102t ¥e0e/98/L
161021 ¥202/9¢/L
061021 ¥202/9¢2/L
68LOZL ¥20E/9e/L
88L0CL F202/9¢2/L
I8LOTL ¥202/92/L
981021 ¥20e/9z/L
SBLOZL ¥ege/9z/L
¥8LOZ| veue/9z/L
£8LOZI ¥20e/9z/L
28LOZL ¥2aT/9E/L
L8LOZL ¥20Z/92/L
08LOCL Fe0z/oe/L
BLLO0EL YeuZ/92/L
BLLOCL ¥202/92/L
LELOCL ¥20E/9E/L
9.102) ¥202/92/L
SLLOCL yeue/az/L
VLLOCL ¥202/92/1
ELL0ZL ¥e0e/9z/L
¢LLO¢L ¥E0e/9e/L
LLLOZL ¥eae/9z/L
0L102) ¥20e/9e/L
69102} ¥e0g/9e/L
891071 te0e/9e/L
291021 ¥e0e/9e/L
991021 eoe/9e/L
S9L0ZL ¥E0e/8e/L
791021 ¥eoe/ge/s
€91021 ¥e0e/9z/L

WwRwAeg
1waied
1uBLwiAey
JuawAed
juswAeg
Juswied
aWAed
JusLAeg

11003349
16004139
LCO0OYNd
LGOCNOTD
QE0CHYTD
LOOONYHD
900014V
710031V

JusWAzy
JusWARY
JusWAey
JusWARd
JusWAeY
pHETTHA-N]
JuswAed
JuswAey
WsAegd
Juawied
JUBWABY
JUIWARY
UBWARG
wswAed
WBUIARY
JusLueg
3usARg
1uaLAeg
uawlied
pUCTIHA-N]
BLEARY
JUBWARY
suied
JUSUIARY
Wawhed
UBWABG
JuBwAed
WBWARd
uswAed
JUBWARH
WalAed
juawAheq
uBWARY

L000SIYA
LGOGOAYZ
LeGoacom
SO000M
LGo0IdvM
LODGLTVM
FOGOGIRAA
&6LODDNVA
<€000NYSN
2000KNNN
LOGONIIN
LO00IVSL
LGO0QAQL
LOGOSAHL
LeooLsaL
LCOONIMS
<000Y3LS
ELOONYLS
LOQOYHOS
SO00UVINS
ZO0GNVAS
LOGOLNTS
Lo00daoy
LOGOZLLIY
Le0GSIMOD
80004 Yd
PACOHINO
LOGOIFHO
LOGOI44O
10602130
<0000130
S00CLYON
LOOOHSYIN

Page 10 of 78



8TLLLE
YEE96C
050LE
£L'E6
8LZEL'S
0545e'E
05°G1LE
ProcL
005251
000551
00'L0s
rlL'oge
00628
00'05¢
OL°4S2
€192
o0osi
0o¥ee'L
I A
00°00S
CELLY
gL'ce
99l
SL91
o¥viv
0000s'L
05°05E
SoE6L'T
FLB0Y
00'00%
00'78S
00001
00osL's
00°%9s
0000%'L
0588
£677ES'L
009sL'z
00009
18°0F
0e'88
0oosL
000SL
98°5%6
0000

MAD3N v3dM

vidM

H139 ‘A00OM

SWVITIIM AV

D11 TIWIN EJANODNYA TVINNILNTD Sh
dTTE S3AI T30LS

HLINS NI3T100

2T 'ISTMHIMON a3¥HS
ISIMITVYL

11 ¥NNIH 3S40H ONIAOY
IDINNT YATIN ‘VIDEvD STATY
3d SYMSIE NVAId

FULVIHL MOAYHS NODIHO
NOSYT 00

ANNAT TIIMATVD

HIIAVZITE ‘NILIVYIN

VXJ1 vI0393d

HINLIHM 1 NITTHLYH - TVRIOLINYE SAHLYY
ATTINAT ‘NI

VIOV HOWOD

WYYO0U4 139

MIWINNS "LONILNOA

DAVAA NOSITTY

NOGNWYYg ‘ZNydD

INVIQ NEY1D

ACQIANOD ¥AVE LEVIN
HIHLVIH ‘NOSHIANY

Vidm

2INVE Xam

31YL 1301 'A0OMHIANN
DNUIHOVHOMNYL

ISIMITVE

IMCH YIHOLOIA

32INNZ YATIN viD¥VD SIATY
VOWYS 20 3SIavdvd

Y313d ‘091davd

ISNO

INFWIDYNYIN DIHIDVd HLHON
27T AIVHIHE VDO NISTIN HYEvS
NIFTHLV ‘ZLNIA

STAVT ‘NOILSIN23W

NELYVIA DINA

VX311 vI2383d

HEIS INIWNITA

STIVH Y3INTIW ATT3A

02120143 ¥20¢/92¢/L
64120143 vene/9e/L
87120143 ¥20e/92/L
LL1204d3 ve0e/92/L
91120143 ¥e0e/oz/L
84120143 ¥202/9¢/L
¥LL20143 veoz/9z/L
E£120143 ¥202/92/L
CLIZ0LA3 veue/oe/L
LLLE0143 #20Z/92/1,
04120143 ¥eue/oe/L
69120143 ¥ene/9z/.
89120143 ¥202/9e/L
£9120143 ¥202/92/L
99120143 ¥e0e/9e/L
§9120143 ¥e0e/9d/L
9120143 veoe/ae/l
£9120143 veoe/9e/L
29120143 veoe/9e/L
19120143 ¥e0e/oe/L
09120143 ¥20Z/92/L
651C0143 ¥Z0e/9¢/L
85120143 ¥202/9¢/L
LS1c0L43 y20e/9e/L
95120143 ¥eoe/9e/L
95Le0L43 ¥e0e/9z/l
Pl 20y ¥ee/9c/L
£5120.43 V2ee/eL/L
2912013 veoe/zL/L
15120443 veaz/ZL/L
0s12043 veoe/zL/L
6¥Le0ld3 veoe/zL/L
8¥L20143 ¥20e/2i/L
L¥1EQLdd veoe/et/L
9FLe0143 ¥e0e/21/L
SFL20143 v20e/2i/L
¥rLealdz veoe/el/s
€7120143 veoe/eL/L
ZP120143 ¥202/2L/L
120143 veoz/el/L
Orie0ids veoe/elL/L
68120143 veoe/el/L
BELZ0LI veOR/eL/L
LELZ0L3 veoe/eL/L
SELZ03 veoe/elL/L

pIECTIRACR
IUBWARY
Wawhied
JUBWAZY
JUsWAzy
wBwhed
Juawied
wswAe
UaUAey
uslAed
Jawied
JusWAed
JuawAed
pHETTTECR]
Wewied
uswAeg
JUBWARS
By
Jswhed
uatAeg
uawhey
ALIARY
Juauieq
wswied
JUIIARY
wBUARy
JUBWARY
1uBwARg
IuBWARd
1uawAeg
WBWARY
UBAR]
UBWARY
wawhed
JUaWARY
awAzy
Juawied
juawfeq
JuawAey
1uswWied
JuaWwAey
JusWwAey
JsWAeg
uswieg
JualAeg

£000V3IdM
L000V3dM
L200a00oMm
LEQOTTIM
FEO0LSIM
L000301s
ZP00LINS
LO0OTHHS
£000310s
<GO0IACY
L0003ATY
LOCOVAId
62009340
Lo00D0
E00NNIW
SLO0LEVIN
LODOVXIT
LOOOHIYY
£0007dVA
LOGOOWOS
1000d13D
LOOOING
FO00NYEa
00070142
SEQOYYTD
CLoOTAVE
9LO0IANY
1000V3IdM
L0009Xam
€0003aNN
L0000OHYL
€00021DS
LOO03IMOY
LOGOIATY
£000vyvd
LGO0YaVd
LOGOISO
9SG0LYON
£D00S13IN
SOGOLNIN
LAGONIOW
LLOOTHVYIN
1H00VXaT
LO0OWAT
L00GTIVH

Page 11 of 78



2O'L9R'SPLE

€L°191°L66

QL €S8y

orez
ogee

8L'E90'L
slIEL'E

9L 1EG'ELS

VeV

8L Er
850ER'T
SO'BLE'E
E8'SE6'T
6L652'S¢L
¥ELS
P6'S9¢'SLE

18'282's Y

GLer
2T99LT
0v'9zZL'E
181602
0198011
£F'0/8°|LSE

BLE96'E52

£6/9V'2LL
L9°502°L
LEgsl'se
0s'¢le'oL
¥E'SEQ'LE
£7°g88'F

L&'622'006°L

{00°90%)

eacuddy Joj sjuaiufed AjLauo 2oL

Anp a0} [loshed Jejo]

+202°51°2 Aed |eadg je1o1qng
59Xe] pung sadel YM-dav
SaXel TNAd-dav

saxe|, [jelAed [eiepsd-day
sebep [|01A24 1BN-4OY

poued Aeq pug - [2joing

xg [ Jsuels 4o

(uswysiueb) sBuipoyupm Jauio
SBXE) pung sa.ed YAA-daY

$3xe] TN4d-dav

saxel ||jodded wobBalo-aay

saxe] ||osAed [elepad-day
safiem fjoshed 18N-dQY

{aq} sebepy, [o1hed 18N-dQY

pouag Aed 18] - [ejogng
Xep ¥suell YO

S9Xe] puny sateD) Y-day
s3xe] TW4d-day

saxe] ||oufed uobauQ-dqy
saxe] |[olhed |esopad-day
(aq) sabep ([Qufed Jon-dav

“auiaN i6pusp

{s3uawAieq HOV) [10gns

WALSAS INIWIHILTY 30 1430 HSYM

3NNIATY G 1430 NOEDNIHSYM
BSIA O9N3

VSH d3SIV

ATHILHVNAD 1187 ¥

davy

¥0C'SL 2 @1e Aed uojeledag
¥e0g Sl L 9ed Ard uoleiedag
Y2075} L oleq Aed uojeredag
¥20Z'GL L 91ed A4 uojeredag

YZ07'ST 4 9le( fed hoikeg
¥20c sz 1 @1eq Aed poled
Y20z ST 2 ee fed jouked
F20T°ST L @1eQ fed loled
¥202°52°L =¥=q Aed oiked
¥20Z'5T 2 ereq fed [jmded
V¥Z02'6Z" 1 e1eq Ard [leuhey
¥2025T 2 918Q Ard ([0ihed

PZOZ'0} L SR Aed [oiAed
$202 012 dreq Aed Jlolhed
Y20z 01" L |1B( Aed |loifed
¥2OT 0L 2 B Aed joiAed
yZ0T 01 L |1Bq Aed |loifey
veag ol Leleq .@m __o;wn_

- lequny usuno0g

YeOT/SYIL
¥Zoe/SiL
YZOE/SLIL
YEoTigLiL

¥202/Se/L
Feozisels
JAVAETATS
¥eocise/s
bAAETAA
¥eQciselL
¥a0zise/L
VeOZIGT!L

VeQc/oLL
¥20ci0L L
¥20e/01/L
¥a0Ci0L L
PeQzioL/L
FEQLIOL/L

‘sjeq jusuinoog.

181000GOGO00000LINGY Fe0e/2L/L
021.060000000000LINTY ¥20Z/2i/L
64 1O0OGOG000000LINTY v20e/2L/L
8/10000000C0000LINTY ¥202/2L/L
L410C000C0COD0OLINTY ¥202/2L/L

SPIGA "S133 ‘SIUBLUEM PUN] [212USD TYAS [E303GNS

suopesuzal ploa [Bjoiqng
VIOV [4OWNOD

. auie Jopuan

941 00000000GI0OLENTY vmc.m.\m._..\....

- 19120143 ¥eue/ge/L
. Jequnpjuswimog: ..

65°2¥2'yo

s.[43 [2301gnS

JusWwAed Looday
uawied Lo0dayY
JuswAey L00dav
Wwalied Looday
Juswhey Lo0dav
juawded L0001
WsAe 100dav
Jswiey 1L00d4QY
JBWARH Looday
Jualwied 1004QaY
uswAed Loo0dav
awleg 1004V
wawied Loodavy
swhed 1004y
Walied 100dQY
wswiiey Loodav
WwawAie L00dav
Juswded L00dQY

. didopuey
juswhed £LO0HSYM
JuBWARd LOGOHSYM,
Juawiey 2000VSIA
JuawAed S000SIVH
uswAeg 20001434

uswieg

WaWwAed

Page 12 0of 78



| ] | |
1oraries |
% [ Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and

FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES | Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

July 2024 Organizational Report:

Battle Ground Community Library

Summer at Your Library continues going strong. An increase in sign-ups and a noticeable
increase in completions has been realized from July of last year. The scavenger hunt and
trivia questions have been popular and the stickers are quickly being collected by eager
kids.

The Battle Ground Community Library’s partnership with Battle Ground Parks & Rec
transitioned seamlessly from SAYL sign-ups to Storytime in the park. Families are invited
to join us after we set up and we happily re-read books for late comers sometimes at
least twice.

Battle Ground enjoyed an additional outreach tabling event at Esther Short Park in
Vancouver for Pride this month. Several hundred people braved the heat and many of
them made buttons, selected books, and signed up for cards.

Eleven teens and tweens rose to the challenge
~ of the pirate-themed escape room. The first
| == group barely missed the time limit and the

|

. second beat the Kraken by 30 seconds. All
| seemed happy with the resulting loot.

Cascade Park Community Library

Cascade Park is hosting YES interns again this summer. YES is designed to improve
employment outcomes by providing work readiness training, career related learning
experiences, and internships. This is a great opportunity for our youth.

Cascade Park visited with the Boys & Girls Club, and presented Storytime to Park Crest
Early Learning Center and also to Columbia Valley Elementary summer camp.

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 ¢ 360-906-5000 e fvrl.org

Library locations: Battle Ground, Cascade Park, Goldendale ter, North Benneville, R

Page 13 of 78



FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

\ F V I : I_ I b ra r I e S Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and

Poetry continues to be a draw at Cascade Park. This month's workshop had 18 people
attending. We very much appreciate this partnership with the Clark County Poet
Laureate.

Cascade Park had hosted some great programs including
Marble Maze, Craft n Chat and the Morning Book Group.
We facilitated three family Storytimes at Educational
Opportunities for Children and Families.

Programming for Tweens and Teens including Magic the
Gathering and the Virtual D&D and Video Game Club,
were a big hit and bring in lots of folks.

Goldendale Community Days helps to celebrate the 4™ of July on the following
weekend. This year, even more bling was added for the parade, although we didn’t
place we are excited to try again next time! The Bookmobile also participated in the
Touch a Truck part of the event highlighted all different types of vehicles.

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 ¢ 360-906-5000 e fvrl.org

ibrary locatfions: Battle Ground, Cascade Park, Goldendale, La Center, North Bonneviile, Ridgefield, Stevenson,

Three Creeks, Vancouver, \L.ncu.her Mall, V -',55.1\, White Salmon Valley, Woodland, Yacolt, Yale

Page 14 of 78



FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES | Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

" L ] ]
\W FVRLibraries
\ ‘ Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and

' In partnership with the City of Goldendale and
Holcomb’s Market, the Scavenger Hunt Society
‘il hosted its 3rd annual scavenger hunt during

o i Community Days. 47 happy participants braved
; ' the high temperatures to explore a little more of
the history of Goldendale. A staff member
commented that: “It was so much fun to hear
and see the excitement of kids picking up their
Goldendale Scavenger Hunt prize bags for
completing the challenge. Lots of OOOHs and
AAAHSs.”

The Goldendale Pride Alliance held their Pride
block party once again with WAGAP greeting
visitors, vendors, Indian Tacos, and music.
Speakers included the mayor and one of the
pastors from a local church.

La Center Community Library

La Center staff were very fortunate again this year to have La Center School District
specialists join us at the library on performer days to help families with reading
strategies and to talk to families. Our school superintendent, Peter Rosenkranz also
joined us!

The YMCA brought their Lego programs to the La Center this month and our families
really enjoy their Lego challenges.

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661  360-906-5000 e fvrl.org

Page 15 of 78



I ra r I e S ! Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and

FORT VANCOUVER REGIOMNAL LIBRARIES |  Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

This month we finished up the La Center Farmer’s Market outreach. The days were very
warm, but we were able to connect to some new community members and talk about
our great library resources.

% This month staff & Friends of the Library
marched together in the Our Days
Twilight Parade. The theme this year was
' 45 the Wild, Wild West on the River! Staff

tossed candy and the Friends handed out
free book coupons. We saw so many of
our patrons in the crowd and had such a
great time!

Ridgefield staff finished construction of a yellow
cardboard submarine that is perfect sized for our
younger patrons to climb in and explore. It even
includes a working telescope and will be in the

. children’s area for their enjoyment.

The Ridgefield Heritage Society completed installation of “Celebrating 115 Years of
Ridgefield Area History at Work and Play” at the Cube Gallery located at the Ridgefield
Administrative and Civic Center. This included prints of scanned photographs of the
Bratlie Brothers Mill from the Ridgefield Library’s collection. The installation came
together beautifully.

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 ¢ 360-906-5000 e fvrl.org

ade Park. Goldendale. La Center, North Bumrﬂ"“ie Ridge

uver Mall, Was

ibrary locations: Battle Ground, C
Three Creeks, Vancouver, Vs

wgal, White Saimon Valley, Woodland, Y

Page 16 of 78



> ﬁ( I ra r I e S ‘ Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and
FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

On July 17th the Museum of Curious Things parked outside the library for our third SAYL
program. 100 eager community members participated in traversing through the

museum.

, ‘\L‘ Ridgefield staff displayed designs for a People’s
" Choice Award and invited all entrants (17) to paint
a window in late July. Two members of the Art
Association judged entries and all entrants will
receive a blue ribbon provided by them. The library
will hold an awards ceremony in August.

Stevenson Community Library (including North Bonneville and Stevenson Bookmobile)
Skamania County Bookmobile is continuing its 2024 summer routes, with the yard game
traveling kit at the Rhine Village Apartments in White Salmon, which is an affordable
housing complex. Access for tribal members continues through the summer weekly Fat
Bonneville and White Salmon sites, and our stop at Glenwood moves to the General
Store which is also on Yakama Nation land.

The Washington Gorge Action Programs (WAGAP), provided cooling kits during the
extreme heat event that have been distributed at the library.

The Skamania County Pioneer continues to publish Library Leaves and highlighted
Summer at Your Library in July

Three Creeks Community

| * Three Creeks held programming at Hazel Dell Park and made
, catapults and at Felida Park we did a stamp making activity.
We had over 120 community members join us for fun.

§ Three Creeks hosted a Humanities Washington hybrid

& program: Beyond Words: Storytelling Through Indian Classical
Dance. Piyali Biswas gave a beautiful presentation and then

illustrated the topic through dance. It was enthralling.

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 ¢ 360-906-5000 e fvrl.org

Page 17 of 78



Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and
Weodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES

\\ FVRLibraries

Three Creeks is now offering an ESL class weekly in partnership with Goodwill. We are
excited to be able to provide this program to our community.

Vancouver Community Library

The Summer Lunch Program is a success and we have been able to provide over 900
lunches to kids and teens in the month of July! So exciting that we can partner with
Share Vancouver to help combat food insecurity in Clark County.

This is a fun story about how the library connects community

. members in sometimes very unique ways. One of our staff took
' a call from a patron whose husband is a metal detectorist. They
. were looking for old yearbooks to find names that were from a
ring that he had located. The staff member recognized the last
name and after making some calls found that through those

; ‘ connections they were able to find the owner of the ring that
was lost at Wintler Park circa 1982. They were so grateful to
have their ring back!

Vancouver Mall Community Library

— “ B _ “""""“"'“"'H-- This month, we hosted the enTaiko

Drummers at the Vancouver Mall
Center Court, and they lived up to
their billing of being loud. It was an
entertaining program with a lot of
i drumming, and even staff got into
8l the action and drummed along.

Staff are very excited that all open positions have been filled as of July. We welcomed
two new PSAs to the district, and the Senior Branch Supervisor. The Branch Manager is
very excited to get them fully onboarded and trained.

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washmgton 98661 * 360-906-5000 e fvrl.org

Library locations: Battle Ground, C id, Stevenson

Three Creeks, Vanc ouver, V

Page 18 of 78



FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES |  Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

. L n !
oraries
‘ i Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and

Washougal Community Library

Staff and Clark County Poet Laureate, Susan Dingle, hosted a Zine making workshop this
month. Community members enjoyed this program.

s Kids and families enjoyed some of the summer reading programs this
. month from learning about light and reflections by making
kaleidoscopes to laughing along with Angel Ocasio.

Staff have been working hard to build our teen
‘ programming. This month we held a teen tie dye party
47 where they could tie dye socks and bags or bring a
"3 garment of their choice. We had popsicles and a button
machine as well. The teens had fun!

White Salmon Valley Community Library
Visits to the A-List Adventure students during the summer continue. This year it's a
mixed age group and a great partnership. Staff member, Holly, hosted Nicole

Christensen, with the Klickitat Health Dept, for an informative session at our Baby Story
Time on introducing babies to solid food.

Summer At Your Library activities offered
opportunities from pinata making to rubber stamping,
magic shows, and Storytime’s in the park. We, also,

* hosted both adult book discussion groups with good
turnout. A small group of regular Book Buddies kids
(ages 6-9) have been meeting in the library on
Wednesday afternoons, mostly having fun with each
other and talking a little bit about books.

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 ¢ 360-906-5000 e fvrl.org

Library locat Battle Ground, Cas Park, endale, La ( er, North Bonn le, Ridgef Stevensor

i & Viamrmt g \/an
(S, Vancouver, van

Page 19 of 78



Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and
Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

\\ FVRLibraries

\ FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES

r

Woodland Community Library

Summer @ Your Library is going great. Outreach to Horseshoe Lake Park on Friday
evenings for the community “Hot Summer Nights” has also helped get people interested
and allowed a good opportunity for us to distribute the News & Events, promote our
branch programs and sign people up for the challenges. We have had a great response
to the variety of programs this month.

The new library is nearing completion. We are all
working hard to make sure all the final details are
in place. There have been several related projects
- that have been extremely exciting. One is the

. SuperFab ceiling sculpture in the children’s area.
Dr. Dene Grigar and two of her students from the
Digital Media Department at WSUV are working to
N design and implement a “gamified” interaction

. with the art installation.

The Yacolt Express Library
We signed up over 200 participants for Summer at your Library, an increase from last

year.

Our Wednesday and Friday craft workshops continue to be a big
hit, and this month our theme was “The Great Outdoors.” Over
150 community members were able to join us.

On July 13th the library hosted Vikki Gasko Green in Central Park.
It was well attended and was a fun performance.

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 ¢ 360-906-5000 e fvrl.org

Center, Nort!

Library locations: Battle Ground, C

icje Park, Gold

Three Creeks, Vancouver, Ve White Salmon Valley, V

ior Mai

Page 20 of 78



i‘fd F V I : L I b ra rles a Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and
Fw FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

Yale Valley Community Library
Yale Valley welcomed over 900 patrons for the month of July and has been busy signing
up families for Summer at your Library.

On Tuesday July 11th, the Oregon Reptile Man visited the library and was a huge hit.
We had a huge turn out and filled the library with over 80 people. Last week a parent
come in to tell us that his son was still talking about the presentation and was back to
check out books on reptiles. His son didn’t care what kind of reptile he just wanted to
learn about them all. On his way out of the library he was thanking us again for bringing
the reptile man to the library. It is always so heartwarming to hear positive stories
about how our library impacts the lives of those in our community.

On July 18th we set up stamp making as part of our Family Craft Workshop and had two

families stop by to participate. This is a new addition to our calendar and we hope as
school starts back up in the fall we will see the program grow.

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661  360-906-5000 e fvrl.org

Page 21 of 78



€C0Ccm teoZm

£9CTT 29r6S
OvET €T6LE
SUOISS3aS Dd 1H1M

0000 00009 0000S  0000OF  0000E  0000Z  000OT

79v65
€261 Lk

Sl
coveT

asN |4IM pue saindwo)

vEY'C vS6 I8EC  00¥'T 079'C [T6T swunody

6T10¢ 0¢0C¢ TeoZ  ¢eoc €0t veoe

AInf u1l pappy s1UNo22y MaN

0

=]

=]

05

000'T

0051

0007

00S'C

000'¢

00S'e

SUOISSag Id

gcocm yZoZm

CEVL 9.¢ ecocm
TB0TT 6t oz m
saapuayY swieldold
000cT 00001 0008 0009 000v 000¢ 0
9LE
Pt steldold
CEVL
swesdoid

%8¢
siapjoypied
Uspisay

(PZ0T/T/¥) uawaBeue A [RIDUBUIL JO 22140 21R)S UOIBUIYSEAR

G99°0SS - panIas uone|ndod

Page 22 of 78

3sN Y291 pue ‘sweisdold ‘siap|oypied-z0oz |nf




reoe Infr

Page 23 of 78

veoc Ainr

€zoz 1INnfr
NOILVYTINDYID 1V1OL

%9v°S TvS'LSY 81578V jelol puein
%E]'ST CEV'POT 79061 sU0I129]|0) |edsIq
%L0'6 %9€°0- T09'STT 601°€6C | £809CT 950262 |ejo] uoiledoT
SI0MSIA ON|(%//C- SIOUSIA ON | /6€ SI01ISIA ON | 98¢ 111/433u8) suonesadQ
SI0USIA ON|%96°0T- | SIOUSIA ON | 0SZ'T SIOUSIAON | €ETT'T l1eN Aq syooq
SI0USIA ON(%9/'9€ SIOUSIA ON | 89 SI0USIA ON | €6 UIBUNOJA U33ID
%.8'C %L8'L L06 98 €€6 756 EENEIEN
%9Y° 2T %SY'ET 9zt ST6'Y 146°C 9/5's 1{0dBA
%886 %L9°C- 609 6156 9699 Q97’6 As||ep uowies a11ym
%E6°6" %9G°'S 198°C 16y LLST G8T'S PUB|POOAA
%ILL %6E T 96€y Sh6'L GELY GSL L |esnoysepm
%06'T %EOVT- | €ETE9 YI9'TT | €€¥9 ¥86'6 [|BIAl J9ANODOUBA
%66 €T %90'T- 6ST'LC 0/v'99 | 6S6°0€ £9/°S9 JaANoduUBA
% €T %t9'€ 8C6'CT 8L6Ly | OV9'VT veL'ey $y284) dauyL
%98'¢- %9t7°'C €09 G8T'Y v9v'E 88C'Y UOSUIARIS
%9815 %0891 | SLT €9 TL¢ 15/ 9|lgownjoog eIUBWIEYS
%Lt ET %S 0- S20'L €SSTT | TL6°L 99111 playa3piy
%90°€- %88'6E- |86 9€€ 56 20z 9||IASuuog YHoN
%00°LT %TS0 619C A 9ze's 059 131u9) e
%0LETE  |%00°8T- | €L oSt z0€ 69¢€ 3|iqounjoog 3ean|dly
%0T'TE %C6°0 962 LS6°S 1ZEY z10'9 9|epuspjo
%L9'T %6L - 788'1T ¥c9'99 | L6T'SC 9ev’'e9 led spease)
%SC'€ %6S°S Y101 8560 | 960°TT 8YT'eV punoig aneg
SIOUSIA (24D [B}OL| SJOUSIA (241D |BIOL| SJOUSIA  [24D) |EIOL uoi}el07

a3ueyd €202 INf veoz Inf

SI01ISIA pue uone|nail) |elol — ¢0z Alnf




000°sE

SINOYO3YD W  SIOUSIA M

000'0E 000'sZ 000°0Z 000'sT 000°0T 000's 0

|
d
e

”“MHM

veoz Ainr

3||iAauuog YLOoN
3llqounjoog eI
A9|[BA BlBA
3|lqowoog BluewWeS
UoSUaA3IS
pue|poom

1j02eA

2|epusp|oo

J91u3] e
|e8noysepn

[IEIN J@ANOIUBA
A3[|BA UOWIES SHYM
PIaya3pry

punoig spieg
$3934D 234y L
J3Anoduep

yied apease)

Page 24 of 78

Ateiqi7 Aqg siolsip pue sinoxasy) :Alandy Ateiqil — 2oz Ainr




veoe 1nfr

. 032340 [e21sAyd = |e10] _ur_m.._w
: ) edtshudm  sinoy “vvT | 909'LEE ond3jjo] [eNFiq
B S|emMaua fed) ZT6'viT ; suot - jelol
noyasyd [enisig 81578V 297061 _mu_m\'r_n_ | =
S1 I : =
‘SPT | S68°TTE C9v'06T | 0 YT | vTILYT [AeRy sUBgE
‘0- | %Z'S ©9T 0 VLT 950 ST - 9eA
%50 er'y ‘ST | €9 8¢ LL9
%5°S %8°ST T'c6z 9{%79°'<t e 9 : 9ct oy 1[oe]:)
. e 60 €Tl IYM
%8'ST %S0~ | %Z0 — 6L = — mmm,N —T Folien UGIIES mwMB
0- '8C- 14 1247 2 ue|p
%b0 — %0°'8T ; 8l Sy G €0’'s i
%L 86 0S7'T € 9/5°S v 6 SEAN
%87 - %9°8T- iy 7 - 9¢c 7 mmsos
a — %EY i = 98 e 1o 5976 e 8S8'C | ANOIUEN
o0 13 BELT | %L ST6'r . £92'S <8T'S L STy lleIN 2 7
; 0 : 1% ‘e oou
%6 L : %e'TC - 9s¢ ‘N y €09 ‘ J9AN
% : %9’ — 6TS'6 o <08 GG/, e €09y M
%t €T T %€ — 79Ty i 18 Yrl'67 Y EED i) :
= 0 : 4 ‘9¢ EYE
%L'T . %0°C : €8L¢ 'S - €c0’9 ‘97 uosu
%€'0T SY6L 5 [44 19759 - 0SZ
, o z a3piy
%9'S T %C'0 : Wi 00 . vL6'T 5z ploy
%y T- Wt Tl | %6 ST s %4 mw ror'sT e €LLT e ajjiABUUOg i mﬂ_
B J “0- T - ‘g . ua)
%0 7T T | %60 . TLL e’z ; 19 = 191
%Z'T : /6L ” 9¢ Q91T S0 1
%T'T- nM.m.o %19 G8T'v ciid] 086'S 70T L6 90/ HIEINQIA UealD)
= (] = \m sN - C&U_Ow
%9t - €SS'TT 9 +0S‘9 5
il ncm.o alier e Ogt LST'E €6 61T'E YHEd Dpease]
%8°0- . 87~ | %T'8C- = 5 vIz'e €6 5 E6L' ¥S6°0€ unjoog eluewess
g %6681~ . 1Ly [410] ‘ a|iqo 0
%6'6€ %6 ZT- | %S EL o 89 TR S z8r'ee i 3]1G0WN|00g 1EIPIN
. 2 . N = : 9|1eg
50 #BSE | W00 LS6'S = ‘ce ke TSL cct 53 punois 9|
%8°9¢€ TT | %L9- . by € €€ HEL 09'tZ
%Y = 729'99 = 69€ 2 L
o0 A% |Wid €79 = BLc 8VZ'Er L NOPSUI
(v]
p- ‘6T T : mauay
%8V %ot %96 g 4 = €Tr'Te 211 |eI0L nr
il %C'L Ly 35600 SES . NoX9Y) : vcoc|
= » 0 . Maua
o8t RLS | S 241 jejoL Inf
%9'S noyIBRY) €202
Mauay
= agduey)

Page 25 of 78

Ainr
uone|nail) |e10l — 20T




"JIshw SulwieaJls pue saulzegew sapnjoul |eydiq J19Yl0

"SWI31 SNOBUR|ISIW puUe ‘SH00gaW0oIY)
21snw ‘s1y ‘sawed ‘saulzedew sapnoul [e2ISAYd J9Y10

€9V'TET 8¥8'OF 90S'SST 0TL'OST 0ST LT 886'9tT |edisAyd m
STZ'LTT 60LLYT BE6'TYT 08S'9ET ZEV'PIT Z9V'06T  |eUSIQ m
6T0C 020z 120z gc0c €20  teoe

00005

000001
000°0ST
000°002
000052
000°00€

(=]

%LE
s)yoog

%T¢

$yooga

%T
sjooqoipny

%le
s)ooqoipny?a

%
Sana

%€

09pIA Sulweals

vzoz Ainf %6 %1
[ensia Joy10 |eatsAyd 12410
8/9'8VE | LSS88T | #¥¥'86C | 00€°28¢7 | Z8S'TTIE | OSK'ZEE | s|eroL

TEE'TC | €60vT | Tzv'sr | 6TT'6T | 0£€?z | S00°TE [ensig Jayio
1659 L8Y S’y | 006'c | £T8't | ¥68'E |eatsAyd Jay10

——_ 0€Z’'s 758'6 GES6 €€T’S 86T'6 zTeor 093pIA Sulweals
TLT'9€ | 98T'S 08¥'9T | ¥69'vT | 8TL'PT | LE8'ET sana

09€TV | LO9'LYV | /9¥'TS | 90S§9S | Ov0'89 | vwi'6L s)jooqoipnya
HOm0aE 186 | 609'T [868% |8Iv't |cv0'v | 6€8°E sjooqoipny
€6C'8Y | LST'99 | STSZS | TI8'SS | ¥98't9 | 16€'69 sjooga

#202-6T0Z SIn0¥29y) uondvj|o) [ensiq g |eaishyd 0Z6'8LT | 995°€E | 9/9°6TT | 80L'TT | €55'vZT | 8T¥'STI s)oog
6102 0z0T 1202 zeoe €202 202 sali0ga1e)

jewso4 way Aq s1noXa8Y) zoz Ainr — asn uons||o)

Page 26 of 78



[ January —July 2024: New Accounts Added by Cardholder Age

Number of Accounts Added

3,500

3,000

2,500

2,000

1,500

1,000

500

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL

@ Adult B Minor

Percentage Added for Cardholders Under Age 18

35%

30%

20%
15%
10%

5%

%Minor

Page 27 of 78



Vol. 16.7: August 2024

Foundation Update

Laura Dave

FUNDRAISER | OCTOBER 17, 5:30-9:30 pm

Purchase ticketsat  TICKETS: $120
fvrifoundation.org! Tables of 10: $1,200

ety fiﬁ'h-{g{g.?”

The Authors & lllustrators Dinner & Silent Auction is October 17!

Join us at the Hilton Vancouver for an evening with Laura Dave, New York Times bestselling
author of The Last Thing He Told Me,; Eight Hundred Grapes; Hello, Sunshine; and other novels.
Her books have been published in thirty-eight countries and have appeared on numerous best-of
lists. The Last Thing He Told Me was a previous Goodreads’ Mystery and Thriller of the Year and

is a limited series on Apple TV+. Tickets are available at fvrifoundation.org. We’'ll see you there!

Great News!

The Foundation disbursed the final $641,429.13 payment to the District from the $2 million state
grant for the Woodland Community Library project.

A local donor contributed $75,000 to the Woodland Library Building Fund in support of two naming
opportunities.

As of August 8, the Foundation has received $18,600 in sponsorship support for the 2024 Authors
& lllustrators Dinner & Silent Auction.

The Friends of Cascade Park Community Library transferred $10,000 to their investment account.
The Foundation's partnership with ThriftBooks generated $1,868.91 in revenue in June and over
$2,000 in July from online sales of used books.

Page 28 of 78



Upcoming Events

Saturday, August 10
Washougal Friends Art Fundraiser
Reflection Plaza, 1703 Main St,
Washougal
9:00am-3:00pm

Monday, August 19
FVRL Trustee Meeting
Hybrid: Goldendale Community
Library and Zoom
6:00pm-8:00pm

Thursday, August 22
FVRL Foundation Board Meeting
FVRL Foundation Office
3:00pm—4:00pm

Monday, September 2
All libraries will be closed in

recognition of Labor Day

Saturday, September 21
FVRL Trustee Meeting
Hybrid: Battle Ground Community
Library and Zoom
4:00pm-6:00pm
*Note: the date and time are different
for this meeting as the
Trustee Retreat takes place
earlier the same day.

Construction continues on the
Woodland Community Library, which will
open in late fall 2024.

Building Campaigns and
Cornerstone Pledges

Washougal has 47 Cornerstones,
2 Stepping Stones, 3 Keystones,
2 Capstones, and 1 naming
opportunity.

Woodland has 39 Cornerstones,
6 Stepping Stones, 9 Keystones,
4 Capstones, and
28 naming opportunities.

*Please note: some Cornerstones have
graduated to Stepping Stones, which is why
some Cornerstone totals have decreased.

How Board Members Can Help

—Spread the word about the Fred
Meyer Rewards program:
fredmeyer.com/i/community/communi

ty-rewards

Many thanks to our generous sponsors of
FVRLibraries’ Summer at Your Library program!

America’s Self Storage

ANC Movers

Camas-Washougal Community Chest
Cooper Chiropractic Center for Health & Wellness
eXp Realty—Debbie Crane

Five Rings—Anchor Financial

iQ Credit Union

Kumon Vancouver North

My Gym Children's Fitness Center
OnPoint Community Credit Union
Paul Montague Tax Preparation
Riverview Bank

Simply Thyme Catering

Umpqua Bank

Vancouver Family Magazine

Page 29 of 78



S3IEvaE!T TYNOIO3Y HIANOONYA LHO4

SalRIqITYAS

SoLIBIqITHAS

Page 30 of 78



‘(s1eak g) v epur ‘(s1eak g) uojed ‘ (sieak g1) goqg :sgns o g |
(s1eak

0 L-sai|1oe4) sewer ‘(Jaquisldas ul suels) P ‘(sieak g) Auo]
'(s1eah g'g) eus] ‘(sieah gg) uesns ‘(sieak €) O epur |

‘(s1eahk 9) usr ‘(sieak g) A1sYD ‘(sieak Z) duueLpy |

ldeds

joUalIadXxe pauIquod JO sieak G'eg =
‘(s1edh g) Mgy

Page 31 of 78

wea] pjoo syl



g98pisqiny o
€Y7 LTy SIOUSIA £202
uonejndod jo %/ :si1epjoypied £20z
G//'€T uonenaul) €202
€.61 3dUls s9|iqowyoog ¢
4 'bS 099'G L
|]opowsy 8L0Z ©
psj@powsal
pue papuedxa Aleiqi 5861

Aieiqi jeuoibay JaAnosuep 1104

Jo Lied sweoaq AJUnog 1BINOIP €261
pauado
Kieaqr a1jgnd @314 8|epusp|o9 G161

> g

@m.ahmwﬂﬂgmm‘ﬂwﬁsq

Areiqi7 Ayunwiwon ajepusplos

Page 32 of 78



3 0f 78

sdiysiaulied B suoioauuo)




[«
~
Y
o
<
m
(]
()]
©
(a8

ssisiaing C

e
oyl 1e £€20¢ 10} _
 sweiboud |ejo] | e t—

P

sdiysiauiied % suonosuUU0y



sdiysiaulied 3 suoijoauuo)

Page 35 of 78



Page 36 of 78

ssieiaing o

mn___,_mhm:tmn_ D m:ozom::oo



Page 37 of 78

. luaned pue jeuoissajoid

uodjed ajigowoog e Woi-
queses|d njdjay os -,

. 'S)|04 [einJ 1nO-Je) SN
PSR UaAS JO Spuey 8y} 01Ul $500q 196 0] 110)J8
tmkm.\mnom\:mE yons buiyjew Aielql| 8yl 8as 01 snojnqgey sy,
KUBH SR AMI)] e ———
ajepuspjog ay |, | ledpund Sdo ‘sebpan albuy—

Jidaurted Bujuies) Ayunwwod [nspuom e |
(AU USIG JSAZ | yons aney o1 a1euniioy os aie apm “Buimaia asdijos ayj 1 1ybifep yum |
oA, aM \Cmun.: jnjneaq | pawealas Ajjesall) spiy ay | "sasse|b ayy joj yonw QS nof yuey],

. Jeuoissajoid

pue jnjdjay ‘Ajpusiy usaqg
oAeRY alay] Bunjiom ||y iA1elqif
BM '9/8puap|og 8yl 8AQ] |,

.s.m—._*o._.wm @ .
q1p S Y Ctmg =3 |
Ayunwwoo CAuunwiwos

| . | INo JO Ja1Uad2 B SI ]| 243y
)-iseelqll W 1ou Aieiqy syl asem pajoedu
anol 1, W Aje1anas ag pjnom umo) ano,

L Auunwiwod 1no
uj jods 1ybriq e si Aieiqiy siy |

r

sdiysiaulied B suoioauuon



m@:m._ﬂ_l_mu_\/n_ /ﬂ “ NOLONIH:

SELET
J00Y2s /

2 1107, 100(] IXAN
wEmw._n_ ui buigsaauj u
I _ Willd @y< Hﬁr.HL
salieiqiy 104 sa3Jnosay NOID3Id NHILSTIMHLION
3 mm:;;u( KBojouydal-aduaidg TVNOILLVNYILNI LSIWILIOYOS

sweq adoH mMaN

Areiqry Ajunwwo) ajepuapjon ayy jo

SPUALL |

Ajuno) “_muc_u__x_

040mmo)) Jo .swEEB

~JIVANIAT 9™

sd

ysiaulried B yoeanng



Page 39 of 78

L"Z 1 :9]lw aienbs Jad uonejndod

ssieiciind /7
lw bs 9'L/g'| ;pue]

1w bs 0S'L :8jepuUsap|o9 10 1IN0 8HRISA0D 30IAISS 0£/'7Z :uonendod
8L6 ‘0L ‘uonenauI sjiqownoog £20¢ Alunog 1euory

K13)jen g 1in
n x._ww

' 3jIAIRIUR)

ﬂ V ﬁ el
@33598 iy ‘ uoaddy M

'® <

mzumv_ces »
'E

IIeH 3113 5118
3jepiapyy i

r 4

/7

3||inabioan *

..\\ t U
=5 /
£ A ¢
SUIDIUNOWY 302LUIS

Ateiqi7 Anunwwo) sjepusp|os Jo 1n0 S1UI0d DIIAIBS



. gg S1UsAe |
yoealinQ Jo Jaquiny |

_.‘_;ommbs_‘o 3 9]Igow0og AJUNo?) 1o



sy L

Saueiq) 1y

yoeaJln
0 3 9jiqounjoog Ayunoy e
I{OIIN



S31UYEEIT TYNOID3Y ¥3IANOINVA LHO4

SaLIRIGITYA S

: .W._.:”_._:O: i_mr_o___.mN_c.mlm._O



Kieaqry Ajununuo) ajepuapion ayl jo %

spusiiy @

Page 43 of 78

-

Aleiqi sjepuapjon 2: Jo spualiq |




SYYUBIT TYNOIDIY YIANOINVA LHOA

SoleIqITYA

" nof yuey

W

Page 44 of 78



Fort Vancouver Regional Library District
Statement of Cash
For the Month Ending June 2024 (With year-to-date totals)

December 31, 2023 Ending Cash Balance
Year-to-date Revenue Received

Year-to-date Expenditures

Adjustment for accrued expenditures

Cash Balance June 30, 2024

Operational Reserve (Unassigned)

Target: Operational Fund > 60 o 90 days of annual
operational budget

Ohj 1 - Capital repairs and mainfenance
Obj 2 - Replacement Vehicles
Obj 3 - Capital Projects
Washougal
Woodland
Grand Bivd Remodel
Brush Prairie
Unassigned Capital
Obj 4 - Innovation

Obj 5 - Budget Stabilization Fund

Cash Reserve Fund Expense Total

QOverall Cash Balance

Operational
Reservices as of
January 1, 2024

$ 8,315,870

19,056,296
18,600,499
(16,957,718)
(236,772)

$ 20,462,305

Operational
Reservas as of
June 30, 2024

11,498,463

Net Operational Year-to-Date
Activity June Totals thru June
2024 2024

(1,896,527) 3,182,593 §

Year-to-Date

January 1, 2024

$ 19,056,296

Reserves as of June 2024 Totals thru June  Cash Reserves at
_ April 1, 2024 Expenditures 2024 June 30, 2024

$ 1,000,000 $ - % - 3 1,000,000

148,380 - - 148,380

4,492,678 - - 4,492 678

4,021,932 (713,112) (1,776,584) 2,245,348

677,436 - - " 677,436

400,000 - - 400,000

$ 10,740,426 § (713,112) § (1,776,584) $ 8,963,842

Beginning. Ending -

June 30, 2024
$ 20,462,305

Page 45 of 78



Fort Vancouver Regional Library District

Statement Of Revenue - Calendar Year 2024
For the Month Ending June 2024 (With year-to-date totals)

Year-to-Date Year - to - Date

2024 Budget June 2024 Totals thru Annual Budget
(Adopted 12/2023) Revenues June 2024 Percent
Property Taxes
Praperty Taxes - Clark 26,100,000 249,350 14,556,095 " BBT7%
Property Taxes - Skamania 715,000 62,426 431,187 60.31%
Property Taxes - Klickitat 1,360,000 156,550 956,634 70.33%
Property Taxes - Cowlitz 325,000 32,302 185,454 57.06%
Total Property Taxes 28,500,000 500,628 16,129,270 56.58%
Other Taxes
’ Other Genaral Tax 25,000 17,698 37,318 149.27%
Leasehold Excise Tax 95,000 a01 86,123 90.66%
Total Other Taxes 120,000 18,499 123 441 102.87%
Intergovernmental, Grants & Contracts
Federal in-lieu of Taxes 25,000 - 517 2.07%
Federal Grants - 1,971 1,971 0.00%
State Forest Boards 50,000 1,440 11,876 23.75%
State Grants 25,000 - - -
Yale Valley Library Dist 185,000 72,500 72,500 39.19%
Contracts - Clark County Jail 500 - - 0.00%
Total intergovernmental, Grants & Contracts 285,500 75,911 86,864 30.43%
Charges for Services
Equipment Use Fees 40,000 3,990 22,685 56.71%
Non-Resident Borrower Fee 8,000 2,000 8,007 75.09%
Lost/ Damagad Material Fes 32,000 6,437 23,613 73.79%
Total Charges for Services 80,000 12,427 52,305 65.38%
Miscellaneous
Investment Interest 400,000 66,282 325,096 81.27%
Rental Income 2,000 1,276 3,426 171.28%
Gifts/Contributions 10,000 515 571 5.71%
Library Friends Groups’ Reimbursements 600,000 6,492 13,401 2.23%
Library Foundation Reimbursements 50,450 10,157 36,922 73.19%
Foundation Reimbursements (Grants) 2,449,550 - 1,808,121 73.81%
Insurance Reimbursements 2,500 - 13,572 542.89%
Miscellaneous 2,500 79 4,202 168.08%
Private Grants 50,000 - - 0.00%
Cther Miscellangous - E-Rate 120,000 - - 0.00%
Sale of Assets 10,000 {11} 3,309 33.09%
Total Miscellaneous 3,697,000 85,490 2,208,619 59.74%
Total Operating Revenue $ 32,682,500 692,955 18,600,499 56.91%
Use of Cash Reserves $ 4,000,000 713,112 1,776,584 44.41%
Total Revenues and Use of Cash Reserves $36.682.500 . 1,406,087 20.377.083 56%.

Jan.-Dec. 2024 Fiscal Year June is the 6th meonth of the fiscal year.
Year-to-date budget percentages should

be at 50%, representing 6/12 months,

Page 46 of 78



Fort Vancouver Regional Library District

Statement of Expenses - Calendar Yaar 2024

Operating Expenditures:
Personnel
Wages

Benefit - Medical

Benefit - Dental

Benefit - Life, LTD, AD&D

Benefit - PERS

Benefit - FICA

Benefit - L & | - Warkers Compensation
Benefit - PFML

Unemployment Expense

Personnel Subtotal:

Supplies
Supplies

Small Equipment {(FF&E)
Technelogy
Professional Collection / Tech

Supplies & Small Equipmt/Tech Subtotal:
Library Books / Materials

Library Books & Materials
Electronic Resources
Library Materials Subtotal:

Other Services / Charges
Professional Services

" Communications
Training / Travel
Advertising
Rentais / Leases
Insurance
Utilities
Repairs & Maintenance
Mise¢ / Dues / Printing / Gther
Intergovernmental Services
Other Charges & Services Subtotal:

Tatal Operating Expenditures:

Capital Qutlay:
Buildings / Non-Owned

Buildings / Owned

Woodland (Grant Reimbursed)
Yale

Machinety & Equipment
Capital Outlay Subtotal:

Reserve Project Expenditures
Total Capital Qutlay:

Grand Total All Expenditures:

Jan.-Dec. 2024 Fiscal Year

For the Month Ended June 2024

2024 Budget Year-lo-Date Year to Date
(Adopted June 2024 Totals thru Annual Budget
12/2023) Expenditures June 2024 Percentage

$ 13,323,750 $ 1,305,513 $ 6,440,083 48.34%
2,622,000 203,551 1,187,586 45.28%
249,600 20,044 120,127 48.13%
78,750 12,913 74,487 94.55%
1,337,972 122,457 508,388 44.72%
1,018,267 98,558 483,005 47.39%
101,000 6,491 37,928 37.65%
29,035 2,761 13,619 48.91%
10,001 - 1,740 17.40%
18,771,375 1,772,288 8,956,964 47.72%
458,000 48,435 187,069 40.84%
250,000 616 16,045 7.62%
482,000 4,015 129,551 28.04%
300,000 15,826 144,188 48.06%
1,470,000 68,892 479,854 32,64%
1,823,500 72,103 739,623 40.58%
1,896,500 168,435 942,621 49.70%
3,720,000 230,538 1,682,144 45.22%
2,080,000 94,748 668,760 32.15%
428,200 24,163 164,898 38.51%
108,080 4,177 62,158 57.55%
30,000 1,937 5,885 22.95%
576,800 39,469 273,637 A47.44%
255,000 36,450 57,411 22.51%
469,000 25,058 210,436 44 .87%
887,400 . 76,598 418,442 47.15%
165,388 14,353 87,091 52.66%
3,876 - 438 11.92%
5,003,464 316,943 1,950,165 38.98%
—_28,964.839 2,388,661 13,069,126 45.12%
250,000 4,159 16,377 5.15%
1,288,736 23,033 58,107 4.51%
2,038,525 173,628 2,038,525 100.00%
40,400 - - 0.00%
100,000 = - 0.00%
3,717,661 200,821 2,112,008 56.81%
4,000,000 713,112 1,776,584 44.41%
7,717,661 913,932 3,888,592 50.39%

$ 36,682,500 $ 3,302,594 $16,957,718 46.23%

June is the 8th maonth of the fiscal year.

Year-to-date budget percentages page 47 of 78

should be at 50%, representing 6/12

manths.



Fort Vancouver Regional Library District
Staff Report 2024-08
Port of Woodland Tax Increment Finance Area

TO: FVYRL Board of Trustees

FRCM: Jennifer Giltrop, Executive Director

DATE: 8/19/24

SUBIECT: Port of Woodland - Tax Increment Finance Area

Summary: The Port of Woodland is evaluating the use of Tax Increment Financing (TIF) to fund a suite of
public improvements. The Port has not yet provided cost estimates or details of the projects

The proposed Port of Woodland Tax Increment Area (TIA) area is noted on the attached document from
the Port. In early 2025, the Port wifl have a public process for consideration of the TIA, including two
public briefings and consideration of a resoluticn for the creation of the TIA.

Tax Increment Financing

In 2021, Washington passed legislation which allows local government - defined as cities, towns,
counties, port districts, or any combination thereof —to create Local Tax Increment Finance (LTIF} areas
to fund public improvements. The resulting 39.114 RCW impacts cities, counties and other taxing
districts by capturing the increment of property value growth due those entities over a set period of
time or amount of tax collections. It excludes any property taxes imposed by school districts, excess
school levies, state support for schools, public utilities, and existing bond financing. Library Districts are
not protected from this loss.

A Tax Increment Area (TIA) is property identified by a county, city or port district that requires public
improvements to allow for development. The taxing entity creates the TIA as a means to leverage the
increasing value of new or existing taxable property to service the debt created by the TIF. The
governmental entity creating the TIF is able to retain the new increment of taxes on identified
properties that would have previously gone to other taxing agencies. TIFs are used to pay for public
projects and service the associated debt on limited tax general obligation bonds {LTGO).

Once the TIF has been paid off, any additional funds collected must be returned to the County Treasurer
for distribution to the taxing entities impacted by the TIA.

Key points on Lecal Tax Increment Financing Areas:

Limited to 20% of jurisdiction’s TAV

Limit of two TIFs per jurisdiction {(max $200,000,000}

No modifications once created

Less than 5 years to perform improvements, up to 25 years for debt service
Anticipates private development and increasing values

Uses levies of overlapping taxing districts to determine amount

Calculated on base amount of TAV for property

Impact
The main impact to FVRL is foregone property tax revenues - future increases to the base value of the

Property for up to 25 years. The impact for this proposed TIA is not yet known.

Page 48 of 78



W Port of Woodland

July 15, 2024

Dear Taxing District:

The Port of Woodland is evaluating the use of Tax Increment Financing (TIF) to fund a suite of
public improvement projects that would stimutate economic development, create job
opportunities, and foster growth in Woodland and the surrounding region. TIF is a financing tool
authorized by the Washington State Legislature in 2021 that allows cities, counties, and ports to
fund infrastructure projects that promote job growth and economic vitality within their
communities. Pursuant to RCW 39.114.040 the Port of Woodland is notifying you that it is
considering the formation of a Tax Increment Area (TIA).

TIF works by utilizing the taxes from a property's increased value to fund infrastructure projects
within a designated area, referred to as a Tax Increment Area (TIA). The financial feasibility of
the Tax Increment Plan is reviewed by the Washington State Treasurer’s Office. TIF is not a new
tax. lt is a financing tool that captures and redirects annual tax increases to fund a list of
projects within the TIA, such as railroad improvements, stormwater infrastructure
enhancements, and more. These improvements attract more private business investment in the
area, further stimulating economic development and creating job opportunities.

The location of the proposed TIA is north of Dike Road and the Lewis River, west of Whalen
Road and east of the Columbia River and generally south and west of -5 as shown on the
enclosed fact sheet.

The Port will have a public process for the consideration of this TIA including two public briefings
and consideration of a resolution for the creation of the TIA. We anticipate these to occur in
early 2025. We are presently preparing the technical information that must be shared with the
State Treasurer’s office for their review. We will be submitting that to the State Treasurer’s office
and {o you 90 days after this letter is sent.

We are available to brief your board or staff on our proposed TIA. We will also follow up with a
schedule of the public briefings and the potential consideration of a resolution by the Port
Commission.

Thank you and please contact me if you have any questions.

Jennifer Wray-Keene
Port of Woodland Executive Director
Email: jkeene@portofwoodland.com
Phone: 360.225.6555

Att: Port of Woodland TIF Fact Sheet

1608 Guild Road * Woodland, Washington 98674 ¢ Phone: 3(0 225-6553 + Fax: 360-225- 65I§age 490f 78
Web site: www, pmtofwo()dland com



Port of Woodland

PORT OF WOODLAND EVALUATING NEW FINANCING PLAN

T0 BOOST ECONOMIC GROWTH

The Port of Woodland is evaluating the use of Tax Increment
Financing (TIF) to fund a suite of public improvement

projects that would stimulate economic development, create
job opportunities, and foster growth in Woodland and the
surrounding region. TIF is a financing tool authorized by

the Washington State Legislature in 2021 that allows cities,
counties, and ports to fund infrastructure projects that promote
job growth and economic vitality within their communities.

HOW TIF WORKS

TIF works by utilizing the taxes from a property’s increased value
to fund infrastructure projects within a designated area, referred
to as a Tax Increment Area (TIA). The financial feasibility of the Tax
Increment Plan is reviewed by the Washington State Treasurer's
Office. TIF is not a new tax. It is a financing tool that captures and
redirects annual tax increases to fund a list of projects within the
TIA, such as railroad improvements, stormwater infrastructure
enhancements, and more. These improvements attract more
private business investment in the area, further stimulating
economic development and creating job opportunities.

COORDINATING WITH LOCAL AGENCIES

We are coordinating closely with local agencies and our community

throughout this initiative that will benefit Woodland and the
surrounding region. We will be available to provide information,
answer guestions, and work together on any anticipated impacts
to local agencies. Learn more about TIF, view additicnal resources,
and find out about cpportunities to provide input at our website:
https://portofwoodland.com

BENEFITS OF TIF FOR
OUR COMMUNITY

.|Ile

ECONOMIC GROWTH
Helps facilitate new private
development, thereby
creating jobs and increasing
the local tax base.

0o
ey
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS
Funds can be allocated to
critical infrastructure projects

that will benefit the entire
community.

Gl

LEVERAGING ADDITIONAL FUNDS
New infrastructure projects
and private investment help

attract additional grants,

loans, and investments,
amplifying the impact of the
initial funding.




TIMELINE

SUMMER 2024

__

May JuI Sep Nov Jan ar May Jul Sep Nov Jan
R B ==l .. | _ l I I [ | I | l | | |
] l
Written Public
Notice to Briefing #1
Taxin : First Year of
: .g Submit Draft Report )
Districts = °0 . Public Tax
> fee|re Briefing #2, Allocation
S0 T3V Not Resolution Revenue
ay Notice
Period Frssed Increment
B e RSO R State Area Takes
S Treasurer Effect
Financial and Technical Analysis Review
s S

Public Involvement

PROPOSED TAX INCREMENT AREA

£ TIA Boundary (DRAFT)
T TIA Taxlots

30‘9

' SOUTH pexiN

FOR MORE INFORMATION

Contact:
Jennifer Wray-Keene
Port of Woodland Executive Director

Email: jkeene@portofwoodland.com
Phone: 360.225.6555

For detailed information on tax increment financing
in Washington, refer to the Revised Code of
Washington (RCW) 39.114 at
https.//app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?ciie=39.114




Purchase Card Policy

(Includes Attachment A: Purchase Card User Agreement)

Introduction

The Fort Vancouver Regional Library District (FVRL) recognizes that the use of purchase
(credit) cards is a customary and economical business practice to improve cash management,
reduce costs, and increase efficiency. The Finance Director shall implement and administer the
following standards related to the use of purchase cards by FVRL employees.

Washington RCWs 43.09.2855 (as used in this section, purchase card means a card or device
issued under an arrangement pursuant to which the issuer gives a cardholder the privilege of
obtaining credit from the issuer) and 42.24.115 allow local governments to provide agency credit
cards for staff as long as there is a policy and procedure governing their distribution, limits,
usage, payments and any other necessary rules to ensure compliance. FVRL’s Executive Director
is authorized to adopt any additional rules necessary to implement the provisions of this policy.

The Finance Director is authorized to obtain purchase cards under this policy, which provides for
the distribution, authorization, control, purchase limits and payment of bills through the use of
the purchase cards by FVRL employees. The Finance Director shall implement accounting
controls to promote the proper use of purchase cards and reduce the risk of loss or misuse.

Purchase cards may be used by authorized employees for purchasing goods, services, supplies
and other items from vendors; incurring registration, and training or travel expenses in
connection with the performance of their duties or on behalf of FVRL (where such expenses
have been included and approved in the budget).

1. Issuance, use and control of purchase cards

Purchase cards may be directly issued to those employees who, in the opinion of their Division
Director and the Finance Director, have job responsibilities which could be more easily
facilitated by the use of a purchase card and the purchase card use would benefit FVRL.

o Assigned Purchase Cards: If an employee’s name appears on the face of the card, the
employee is responsible for all purchases made with the card and the only person
authorized to use the card. A purchase card should always be kept in a secure location.

e FVRL Purchase Cards: FVRL purchase cards may be provided to branch, department
or division employees for purchases or travel when it is advantageous or necessary for
FVRL to conduct its business and the employee does not have an assigned purchase card.
These cards may be checked out from Accounting a few days prior to need. While the
card is in an employee’s possession, they are responsible for all purchases made with the
card and are the only person authorized to use the card.

Before being issued a FVRL purchase card, each employee will be required to sign a FVRL
Purchase Card User Agreement (Attachment A) acknowledging that they have read and

Page 52 of 78



understand this policy, and that they understand violation of the policy will subject them to
disciplinary action.
All FVRL purchase card users must follow these general guidelines:

¢ Purchase only goods and services required to perform job-related tasks

¢ Keep expenditures within the purchase card’s limits

e Don’t use the card to purchase items on the exception list

o When possible, obtain pricing and in-stock availability prior to purchase

e Ensure that the vendor immediately authorizes the purchase

e Obtain a detailed copy of the receipt showing the last four digits of the card number

¢ Retain all receipts, packing lists, emails and other substantiating documentation related to
the purchase

«—+tHl-eut-a-Purchase Card Form-(Attachment- By with-the-appropriate-account-number-Gf

avatlable)and-attach-all documentation to form

o—Forward-Purchase Card Form and receipts-to-the-Accounting-PDepartment

All purchase card receipts and other documents identifying purchase card expenditures in
detail must be delivered to the Accounting Department within forty-eight (48} heursfive (5)
business days-of-the transaction-or from-the timeof returnfrom-travel from the date

statement details are available to the card user.

Employees involved in any aspect of purchasing are acting as agents of FVRL and have a
responsibility to act in the best interest of the organization, which includes not personally
favoring a specific vendor at the expense of FVRL.

2. Authorization and Control

The Finance Director or their designee (Purchase Card Administrator) shall create and maintain
accounts with the credit issuer or purchase card company. The Purchase Card Administrator shall
maintain a ledger of individuals and departments using purchase cards, including the date the
card was received, and act as a liaison between the purchase card company and the individual
cardholders.

o Purchase card limits shall be set administratively for each card, depending on expected
purchases during a typical billing cycle. The Finance Director may approve additional
purchase capacity as needed on a temporary or on-going basis.

e Expenses related to authorized travel (hotel, airfare, ground transportation, registration,
fees and meals) may be charged to a FVRL purchase card provided the purchases are
preapproved by the Executive Director or their designee, and the employee returns from
travel with all receipts in accordance with the FVRL Travel and Subsistence Policy and

related procedures.

o The purchaser is respon51ble for ensuring rece1pt of the materlals or services ordered and
resolving any delivery problems, damaged goods issues, or other discrepancies with the
vendor.

Page 53 of 78



» Ifitem(s) purchased with a purchase card need to be returned to a vendor, the purchaser
should follow the vendor's return policy and ensure that proper credit is posted for any
returned item(s). Failure to provide detailed documentation as required by the policy may
result in the purchaser being responsible for the charge.

The Executive Director is authorized to revoke the use of any purchase card issued and
immediately require the surrender of a purchase card. Purchase cards must be returned to FVRL

immediately upon ending employment.

3. Unauthorized Charges

Any employee using a FVRL purchase card for unauthorized purchases or for personal use may
be subject to disciplinary action and shall be billed by FVRL for all such unauthorized charges.
Disallowed charges, or charges not properly identified, will be paid by the employee before the
purchase card bill is due. If a situation arises where an employee is responsible for charges and
the timing of the payment may result in interest and/or late fees, the Finance Director must be
informed immediately. Any employee with a demonstrated history of unauthorized charges may
be barred from obtaining or using a FVRL purchase card.

The following purchase card uses are NOT allowed:

o Charges made without pre-approval of the purchase card user’s direct supervisor,
department head, Division Director or Executive Director

o Payment for personal items and services

o Cash advances of any kind including money orders/travelers checks

e Purchase of gift cards or cash cards

o Purchase of alcoholic beverages

If certain charges are disallowed as a result of an internal audit or violation of current FVRL
policy, such charges must be repaid. Misuse of a FVRL purchase card may result in disciplinary
action up to and including termination and legal action.

Lost or stolen cards

Employees will immediately notify the Purchase Card Administrator, Finance Director or
supervisor if their purchase card is lost or stolen as it is imperative that the card be frozen to
prevent unauthorized use. If the loss is the result of a robbery, please call the police and file a
report. Failure to report a lost or stolen card could result in the employee being held responsible
for any unauthorized charges.

Unauthorized charges by a third party

The Purchase Card Administrator will be responsible for tracking expenditures on the cards on a
monthly basis and identifying any fraudulent use not detected by the purchase card issuer.
Employees may be asked to assist with resolution of unauthorized use.

Page 54 of 78



4. Payment of Bills

Cardholders are required to have all purchase card receipt(s) and other documents identifying the
purchase card expenditure(s) in detail, delivered to the Accounting Department within forty-eight
(48)yheursfive (5) business days of the statement activity made available to card users.-ef-the

A Wa fa a 1y o

he mMon
) . v S o o cl Y = . y—1J

Attachment A
See Printable PDF link at top of page.

Board approved:
Original Policy 7/16/2018
Revised XX/XX/2024

Page 55 of 78



I hereby acknowledge receipt of the purchase card ending in the last 4 digits of

FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY DISTRICT

PURCHASE CARD USER AGREEMENT

1. Tunderstand the Fort Vancouver Regional Libraries (FVRL) Purchase Card is intended to
facilitate the purchase of business-related goods and services for the conduct of FVRL
business and is not for personal use.

2. Tunderstand that my card may be revoked at any time based on change of assignment or
location and that use of this card is not an entitlement nor reflective of title or position.

3. Tunderstand that if [ am issued a card with my name specifically, I am the only person
authorized to use the card and I am responsible for all charges made against the card. I also
understand that if [ use a department card, [ am responsible for all charges that are incurred
while I possess the card.

4. I understand that improper use of the card can be considered misappropriation of FVRL funds,
which may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

5. T understand that I am required to be in compliance with the purchase card policy.

glunderstamdi will-be requiredto-provide-detailedreceip ety Ranher;+o

proteetFVRL-assets;which may inelude being asked to produce the purchase card to verify
its existence and assist during any internal audit review concerning its use.

6-7.1 understand that I am responsible for resolving any discrepancies that may occur by
contacting a vendor directly.

7-8.1 will safeguard use of the issued purchase card and use appropriate security whenever I use
the card. If my card is lost or stolen, I agree to immediately notify the Purchase Card
Administrator and Accounting Department.

8-9.1 understand that the purchase card(s) are property of FVRL and must be surrendered upon
termination of employment or demand of surrender by the Finance Director and/or Executive

Director. At that point, no further use of the account will be authorized.

As a Cardholder, I agree to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including the
FVRL Purchase Card Policy. Your signature below acknowledges that you have read, understand,
and agree to abide by the Purchase Card User Agreement.

Employee Name: Date:

Signature: Department:

I HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND THE ABOVE CONDITIONS

Page 56 of 78



Fort Vancouver Regional Library District
Purchasing and Procurement Policy

PURPOSE
The Fort Vancouver Regional Library District’s (FVRL) Purchasing and Procurement Policy serves as a guideline
directive for staff when obtaining proposals, bids and quotes for public works projects, purchases of goods, and
procurement of professional services. The intent of the policy is to ensure that FVRL is in compliance with

applicable procurement laws and public-contracts-are-managed-satisfactorily-and-efficiently, ensuring
responsible stewardship of public funds. attheleasteestto-the-publicand-the-greatestvalue to-FVRL

POLICY STATEMENT
FVRL will use a competitive process to solicit and evaluate proposals, quotes and bids based on relevant

procurement laws. w

%WM%MWMW%&WPpmwmmeM

procedures and guidelines will be established and maintained by the Executive Director or their designee to
assure a competitive, open, fair and compliant process.

PUBLIC WORK PROJECTS
Public work is defined (39.04.010 RCW) as all work, construction, alteration, repairs, or improvements-te

physical-property, other than ordinary maintenance, on any public building or property. {39.04.010 RCW]

PREVAILING WAGES

All public work projects require payment of prevailing wages under 39.12 RCW. Contractors must be
told in advance that prevailing wages must be paid to all employees who work on the contract. It is the
contractor’s responsibility to file a Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages and applicable affidavits
with the Industrial Statistician of the Department of Labor and Industrial Services. It is FVRL’s
responsibility to ensure compliance, as applicable, before payments are made to contractors.

SMALL WORKS ROSTER
By Resolution 2017-2-2024- 06ef-F\RL's Beard-ef Frustees, public works projects of more than $150,000
and less than $350,000 may use a Small Works Roster (SWR) process to solicit bids [39.04.155 RCW].

FORMAL BIDDING ADVERTISING REQUIREMENTS

For public works projects that do not use the SWR or cost more than $350,000, FVRL will publish a
notice at least once in a local newspaper and no less than thirteen (13) days prior to the closing of the
bid period. If the advertising is for a public works project, it will include notification that the work is
subject to prevailing wages laws. [39.04.010/39.12.010-020 RCW]

ALTERNATIVE PURCHASING METHODS

Where the application of competitive procedures would lead to undesirable, uneconomical or
impractical results, FVRL may also use alternative procurement methods for public works projects, such
as use of design-build or general contractor/construction manager procedures, sole source or turnkey
acquisition, or other alternative procurement methods permitted under Washington state law.

CHANGE ORDERS

A change order is an alteration to a project during construction that is not consistent with the proposal
specifications upon which the contract was awarded. Change orders are contractual requirements used
to manage new or unforeseen circumstances to a project. In the course of a project, bona fide

Page 57 of 78



emergencies may arise and incidental alterations may well be required. As a general rule, a change
order should not be used to remedy defective work or for the loss of a contractor from failure to
perform or bankruptcy. A competitive process should be used in such cases.

DAY LABOR
FVRL reserves the right to use library staff as day labor on projects with an estimated cost up to
$450,000 (single craft) or $65100,000 (multiple craft). [35.23.352 RCW]

EMERGENCIES

Emergency contracts for public works and purchasing is used only to avoid immediate hazard to life, to
preserve FVRL's property, or to prevent significant service disruptions per 39.04.280(3) RCW. In such a
situation, the Executive Director or their designee may declare that an emergency situation exists, waive
competitive proposal requirements, and award all necessary contracts on behalf of FVRL to address the
emergency. If a contract is awarded without competitive requirements due to an emergency, written
proof of the existence of an emergency must be provided to the Board of Trustees and entered into the
recorded minutes ne-laterthan-two-weeksat the next Board of Trustees meeting following the contract’s
award.

ON-CALL SERVICES

FVRL uses on-call vendors/contractors to complete non-routine maintenance and small repair projects.
Frequently the work includes troubleshooting to determine the proper course of action to resolve a
building or equipment failure. Vendors and contractors may be selected from the appropriate SWR and
local vendors can be used as needed for emergency situations.

ORBINARY-MAINTENANCE

Ordin maintenancais any

3 : 0 : ¢ Ordinary
maintenance is defined (296-127-010 WAC) as maintenance work performed by the regular

employees of the political subdivision of the state. Maintenance is defined as keeping existing
facilities in good usable, operational condition. Ordinary-maintenance is defined as maintenance work
performed by the regular employees of the political subdivision.

Ordinary maintenance is not considered a public work and state law does not require a competitive
bidding process. Fhis-werk-may-be-performed-undera-maintenancecontract-orona-case-by-ea
basis:Maintenance performed by contract and meeting the definition of public work will comply with

procurement requirements applicable based on contract amount. FREwill-bid-out-each-contractatne

- nan avo hraao o o-aen aflata' a ¥7a¥a¥a Fal O

Page 58 of 78



FVRL will require performance bonds and/or withhold retainage on public works projects as follows:

e Performance bonds will be required on all projects at or above $150,000.

e Retainage in the amount of 5% will be held on all non-maintenance public works contracts.
e |f FVRL requires a bid bond, it will be stated in the bid documents.

e FVRL will consider a retainage bond in lieu of withholding of retainage as applicable.

PHASING
FVRL may not break a public works project into separate phases to avoid compliance with procurement
laws

35.22.620{3)RCW, which prohibits the division of a project into units of work or classes of work to keep
costs below the bidding threshold, even though those phases are performed at different intervals of
time.

FVRL awards contracts to the lowest bidders deemed both responsive and responsible:

e Responsive —responded to all bid items and included all required elements
e Responsible — one who meets a set of “responsibility criteria” as defined in state law. (39.04.350
RCW). The criteria typically include being properly licensed, registered, and insured.

FVRL will verify that the vendor is eligible to do work in the state of Washington prior to awarding a
contract.

ARCHITECTS AND ENGINEERS
Chapter 39.80 RCW requires that any service that would be provided by a professional, such as a registered
architect, engineer, land surveyor or landscape architect must be procured threugh—gualificatiensthrough
qualifications--based selection. Requests for qualifications (RFQ) ask proposers to submit qualifications, if not
already on file, for a proposed scope of services in response to FVRL's specific needs. Qualified consultants
may be used by FVRL for additional projects within three (3) years of qualification.

PURCHASES OF SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT AND SERVICES
FVRL shall purchase and acquire supplies, equipment, and services pursuant to 39.34 RCW. Purchased goods
and services that meet FVRL’s requirements should be sought for competitive prices and exclude sales tax,
shipping, and handling fees from total cost when considering bid limits. Competitive pricing is not required
for the acquisition of library materials and resources (books, magazines, media, electronic databases, etc.).

Page 59 of 78



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
This includes pProfessional and/or technical-services-include expertise provided by a consultant to
accomplish a specific study, project, task, or other werk-statementscope of work, not including professional
architecture and engineering services. These services will be competitively solicited through a formal Request
for Proposal for projects/services needed by FVRL that are expected to exceed $75,000. For projects and
services over $10,000 and under $75,000, FVRL will obtain a minimum of three quotes. In addition, FVRL will
ensure professional services using federal funds will meet applicable competitive procurement requirements.

DEFNITHONS-GENERAL PROVISIONS
CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No FVRL Trustee or employee may benefit, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, from any FVRL

contract for goods or services nor accept any compensation, gratuity or gift in connection with such
contracts. [42.23.030 RCW]

FVRL is authorized:

= To purchase equipment, supplies, furnishings, and other property through federal government
contracts to obtain the best possible price which are exempt from bidding requirements [39.32.070-
090 RCW].

e To use contracts offered through Washington State DES, once establishing a Master Use Agreement
[39.26.050 and 39.26.060 RCW].

e To rely on the contract award of another government contract, Piggybacking. FVRL will follow
piggybacking compliance requirements [39.34 RCW].

These options allow pricing to be extended to FVRL from other governments and may provide other
efficiencies. FVRL will ensure compliance with all applicable requirements when utilizing contracts
awarded by others.

SALES TAX

Sales tax applies to nearly every sale of tangible personal property and some services. For solicitation
purposes, the tax must be included when determining the cost of a public work, or when calculating the
cost of materials, supplies, and equipment purchased separately from a public work.

SMALL, MINORITY, WOMEN AND VETERAN OWNED FIRMS
FVRL encourages small, minority, women and veteran owned firms to bid on our public works projects,

services and purchases. However, FVRL does not discriminate against or give preferential treatment to
any business.

Page 60 of 78



SOLE SOURCE PROVIDERS
I Sole source exceptions to procurementpurehasing is used when, due to unique characteristics of the
requested product/service there is only one product or service capable of fulfilling FVRL's requirement
} and only one vendor that sells-provides that product or service. Validation of a vendor as a sole source
provider and pre-approval by the Executive Director is required prior to any sole source purchase or

acceptance of bid.

TRANSPARENCY AND REPORTING
FVRL will maintain and annually produce for the Board of Trustees a list of all public works contracts

awarded.fellewing-the Records RetentionPolicy—{39.04.200-RCW]

WARRANTIES
FVRL requires warranties on all public works projects and repairs for a minimum of one year. Longer
warranties may be negotiated for specific projects.

ADMINISTRATION
The Executive Director or designee is responsible for the administration of this policy, for establishing
administrative procedures for its implementation and for making the policy available for the public at-each

braneh-and-via the Library’s web site.

SEVERABILITY
The Board of Trustees hereby declares its intention that the provisions of this policy are declared to be
separate and severable. The invalidity of any clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section, chapter, title
or other portion of this policy, or the invalidity of the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall
not affect the validity of the remainder of the policy, or the validity of its application to other persons or
circumstances.

CONTINUANCE
The Board of Trustees hereby declares its intention that the provisions of this policy shall be construed and
applied as a continuation of the provisions of the policy, as amended, insofar as applicable, and the repeal of
any part of this policy shall not be construed as affecting such continuous application.

Relevant policies: Fiscal Management Policy, Asset Management Policy

Approved and adopted by the Board of Trustees: Original Policy 5/15/2017; Revised — 3/19/2018,
5/18/2020, XX/XX/2024

Page 61 of 78



FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY DISTRICT
Resolution 2024-06

MRSC ROSTERS: SMALL PUBLIC WORKS, CONSULTANT AND VENDOR ROSTERS RESOLUTION

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY DISTRICT (FVRL)
ON THE SUBJECTS OF ESTABLISHING A SMALL PUBLIC WORKS ROSTER AND THE AUTHORITY TO USE THE
ROSTER PROCESS TO AWARD SMALL PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACTS, A CONSULTANT SERVICES ROSTER
FOR GENERAL CONSULTING AND OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, AND A VENDOR ROSTER FOR GOODS
AND SERVICES.

WHEREAS, RCW 39.04.151-154 and other laws regarding contracting for public works by
authorized local governments, allow certain contracts to be awarded by a small works roster process;

and

WHEREAS to be able to implement a small works roster and process, the FVRL is required to
adopt a resolution, establish reporting procedures that are publicly avaitable, and commit to providing
the most practicable opportunities for small businesses when using Direct Contracting; and

WHEREAS to be able to use Direct Contracting on occasion, FVRL is required to define this
process in procedure; and

WHEREAS, chapter 39.80 RCW and other laws regarding contracting for consulting services by
municipalities allow certain contracts to be awarded by a consultant roster process; and

WHEREAS, RCW 39.04.190, regarding purchase of materials, supplies, or equipment not
connected to a public works project, allows certain purchasing contracts to be awarded using a vendor

list.
NOW, THEREFORE, FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY DISTRICT HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:
Section 1. Resolution 2024-06 is hereby repealed and replaced with this Resolution.

Section 2. MRSC Rosters. FVRL hereby elects to use the statewide small works roster established
under RCW 39.04.151(2) and administered by the Municipal Research Services Center of
Washington (MRSC).

Section 3. Small Works Roster. FVRL adopts the following to use in the management and awards
of small public works projects as allowed under RCW 39.04.152. FVRL will maintain
separate procedures and contracting templates for smail works roster contracts.

A.  Small Works, as defined by RCW 39.04.152 are public worls projects estimated to cost
$350,000 or less, excluding sales tax, for the construction, renovation, remodeling,
repair, or improvement of real property.

B. A Small Works Roster is a pre-established list of properly licensed contractors, registered
to do business with FVRL under selected project types and (work) categories.

Page 62 of 78



The Small Works Roster process is an alternative to publicly advertising public work
projects.

Every small works contract is subject to the same public works bidding, award, and
compliance requirements of chapter 39.04 RCW unless specifically included in RCW
39.04.151-154, this resolution, or the incorporated palicies or procedures.

Small Work Roster contract procurements wili be bid electronically through the FVRL’s
procurement processes, except as may be used in small works roster direct contracting
process. (RCW 39.04,152(4))

Only those contractors registered with MRSC Rosters will be invited to bid on small
works roster projects.

Invitations for bid or direct contracting negotiations shall include an estimate of the
scope and nature of the work to be performed as well as materials and equipment to be
furnished. However, detailed plans and specifications need not be included in the
invitation.

Small Works contracts will be awarded to a responsible contractor (RCW 39.04.350)
submitting the lowest responsive bid, unless using direct contracting where a contract
will be awarded to a responsible contractor submitting a competitive bid or negotiated
bid.

Small Works bidding and award information will be entered by FVRL into the statewide
small works roster platform immediately upon conclusion of each small works roster
award.

Small Works bidding and award data wilt be part of the FVRL's procurement files and
records and all documents will be available for review with the FVRL'S public records
officer.

Annual Notification and Invitation. At least once a year, MRSC shall, on behalf of the
FVRL, publish in a newspaper of general circulation within the municipality’s jurisdiction
a notice of the existence of the small works roster and invite contractors to register on
the statewide small works roster. Additionally, as required by RCW 39.04.151(1){c),
MRSC will notify the Office of Minority and Women's Business Enterprise (OMWBE)
directory of certified firms and invite small businesses to apply to the roster.

MRSC shall add responsible contractors to the small works roster at any time that a
contractor completes the online application provided by MRSC and meets minimum
State requirements for roster listing.

Page 63 of 78



M. Direct Contracting.

FVRL intends to use the direct contracting option (RCW 39.04.152(4)) whenever practicable for
Small Works projects estimated to cost $150,000 or fess, excluding sales tax. FVRL has
developed additional policies and procedures to ensure the FVRL uses Direct Contracting with
the spirit and intent of the statute

FVRL delegates authority to oversee and manage the use and outcomes of the small works
roster to the Finance Director or designee. As the delegated authority, the Small Works Roster
Program Manager will be responsible for ensuring all necessary policies, procedures, templates,
contracts or similar are developed and used in accordance with the applicable statutes and
guidance provided by MRSC,

Further, the Small Works Roster Program Manager will be responsible for establishing and
implementing FVRL’s Business Utilization Plan and reporting annually on the utilization and
improvements needed to the policy or contracting processes to meet or exceed the established
goals for small husiness utilization through the Direct Contracting opportunities.

The Smal! Works Roster Program Manager will also be responsible for data collection, reporting,
and similar on all activities, uses, and awards for small works and will ensure all information is
provided to MRSC, the state, or the public as required or requested.

Section 4. Consultant Services Roster. FVRL adopts the use of the MRSC Rosters Consultant
Roster (vendor list) to be used for the procurement and award of consuitant services.

A.  Consultant Services. Consultant services can be “personal services” such as technical
expertise, studies, project management, planning, or similar, or “architecture and
engineering services” or “professional services” services as defined by chapter 39.80
RCW. For all services, FVRL reserves the right to procure using methods other than
formal sealed bidding {low bid) as afforded under RCW 39,04,190,

B.  Soliciting to join the Consultant Roster. MRSC Rosters, as provided as part of their
membership service, will publish twice a year, in a newspaper of general circulation
within the FVRL's counties, a notice of the existence of the Consultant Roster and solicit
consultants to join on our behalf. {(RCW 32.04,190(2})

C. Procuring Consultants. FVRL adopts the following as policies, procedures or similar
when contracting for consultant services:

1. Personal Services.

a. Personal consultants, firms and individuals that provide subject matter
expertise, or services more intellectual in nature such as studies,
accounting, legal, project management, or similar shall be procured using a
Request for Proposal (RFP). Selection should be based on the best value
provided to FVRL and include scoring on experience and expertise in the
field or industry needed, a proposed approach to completing services,
capabitities of the businesses staff, time, and cost to complete the work.

Page 64 of 78



2. Professional Services.

a. Professional architecture and engineering services shalf be procured under
the requirements of chapter 39.80 RCW, using the MRSC Consultant Roster,
Procuring professionals will be through a Request for Qualification (RFQ)
and/or Request for Proposals {RFP) with Qualifications. Price and/or the
cost of the professional services will be 10% or less of the overall score.
Selection. criteria should clearly define the scope of services and the details
on how the FVRL will determine the most qualified professional (or firm),
which will be different depending on FVRL's needs. Further, selection
criteria shall include a plan, as appropriate, to include minority and women-
owned firms, small business, and veteran-owned firms to the maximum
extent practicable,

3. Electronic Submissions. As required by RCW 39.04.190(2), FVRL established the
following procedure for securing written proposals or submittals for consultant
services,

a. Unless otherwise adopted, through establishment of an e-procurement
tool, FVRL will use email communications to request and receive
submissions.

b. An RFQ or RFP shall be developed that will include at a minimum a
description of the services needed, the time of performance, the
scoring criteria with descriptions and relative weighting, the scheduie
with due dates, and any other relevant information. Attached to each
RFQ or RFP shall be the intended contract to be signed, as applicable.

c. A selection committee will be formed with at least 3 staff members to
review and score the submissicns. The selection committee will sign
statements attesting they have no conflicts of interest in the matter
and all proceedings will be confidential until Award.

d. Alist of business will be pulled from the MRSC Rosters consultant
roster under the category of need, and an email request wili be sent
only to the businesses on the roster list of businesses.

e. Once submittals are received, the selection committee will review,
score, and recommend award to the consultant scared the highest.

f.  Records. The original request, responses, scoring, and award

documentation will be kept in the FVRL's records and will be available
upon request.

Page 65 of 78



4, Award of Consultant Contracts.
There may be two methods for awarding consultant services contracts.

a. FVRL reviews and scores all proposal(s) or statements of qualifications
received, hegotiates or similar and then awards the contract; or

b. If the FVRL Board of Trustees delegates the authority to award contracts to
the Executive Director for consuiting services costing less than or equal to
$350,000, the Executive Director shall have the authority to award contracts
for consulting services without the Board of Trustees approval, provided
that the Board of Trustees shall ratify the Executive Directot’s signature and
delegation of authority through FVRL's standard process for such matters,
For consuiting services anticipated with an anticipated value more than
$350,000, the Board of Trustees shall review, score, and award all contracts
for consulting services.

D. Posting of Awards. In accordance with RCW 39.04.200, all consultant/services contract
awards will be posted to the FVRL's website at least every other manth,

Section 5. Vendor Roster. FVRL adopts the use of the MRSC Rosters Vendor Roster (vendor list) to
be used for the pracurement and award of materials, supplies, equipment or similar.
The following vendor list roster procedures are established for use by the FVRL pursuant
to RCW 35.04.190.

A.  Purchase of materials, supplies, or equipment not connected to a public works
project. FVRL is not required to use formal sealed bidding procedures to purchase
materials, supplies, ar equipment not connected to a public works project where the
cost will not exceed the statutory threshold of FVRL. The FVRL will attempt to obtain the
lowest practical price for such goods and services.

B.  Publication. At least twice per year, MRSC shall, on behalf of the FVRL, publish in a
newspaper of general circulation within the municipality’s jurisdiction a notice of the
existence of the vendor list roster and solicit the names of vendors for the vendor list
roster. MRSC shall add vendors licensed to do business in the State of Washington to
the Vendor Roster at any time when a vendor completes the online application and
meets and minimum requirements.

C.  Electronic Quotations, FVRL shall use the following process to obtain written
quotaticns from vendors for the purchase of materials, supplies, or equipment not
connected o a public works project:

1. A written Invitation {to Bid or Quote} with description shall be drafted for the
specific materials, supplies, or equipment to be purchased, including the number,
quantity, quality, and type desired, the proposed delivery date, together with any
evaluation criteria and any relevant information of the purchase. The contract
intended to be signed by the successful vendor is also to be included in with the
invitation.

Page 66 of 78



2. The Executive Director or their designee, shall make a good faith effort to contact at
least three {3} of the vendors on the roster to obtain written quotations from the
vendors for the required materials, supplies, or equipment;

3. The Executive Director or their designee, shall not share written guotations received
from one vendor with other vendors soliciting for the bid to provide the materials,
supplies, ar equipment;

4. A written record shall be made by the Executive Director or their designee, of each
vendor’s bid on the material, supplies, or equipment, and of any conditions imposed
on the bid by such vendor;

Determining the Lowest Responsible Bidder. FVRL shall purchase the materials,
supplies, or equipment from the towest responsible bidder, provided that whenever
there is reason to believe that the lowest acceptable bid is not the best price obtainable,
all bids may be rejected, and FVRL may call for new bids.

Award. Ali of the bids or quotations shall be collected by the Finance Director or their
designee. The Executive Director, or their designee, shall create a written record of all
bids or quotations received, which shall be made available by request after the award of
the contract.

1. The Executive Director, or their designee, shall then present all bids or quotations
and their recommendation for award of the contract to the Board of Trustees. The
Board of Trustees shall consider all bids or quotations received, determine the
lowest responsible bidder, and award the contract; or

2. If the Board of Trustees delegates the authority to award bids to the Executive
Director of the FVRL for materials, supplies, or equipment costing less than or equal
to the policy threshold of the agency, the Executive Director shall have the authority
to award public works contracts without Board of Trustee approval, provided that
the Board of Trustee shall ratify the Executive Director’s approval at the next
scheduled Board of Trustee meeting by means of the consent agenda. For
materials, supplies or equipment costing more than the policy threshold of the FYRL
the Board of Trustees shall award alf vendor contracts.

Posting of Awards. |n accordance with RCW 39.04.200, all vendor contract awards will
be posted to the FVRL's website at least every other month. The posting will include the
vendor awarded the contract, the amount of the contract, a brief description of the
items purchased, and the date it was awarded.

Page 67 of 78



PASSED this 19" day of August, 2024

Kristy Morgan, Chair

Penny Love-Henslee, Vice-Chair

Page 68 of 78



FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

\\ FVRLIibrari
\ I ra r I e S Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and

Board of Trustees Reimbursement Policy

Fort Vancouver Regional Library (FVRL) has a seven (7) member appointed Board of
Trustees responsible for providing and maintaining quality library services for the
citizens of the regional library district as set forth in RCW 27.12 and any other applicable
laws.

A library trustee shall not receive a salary or other compensation for services as trustee,
but may be reimbursed from FVRL funds for expenses incurred while fulfilling the
necessary functions of the office.

e Library trustees are eligible to receive mileage reimbursement at the approved
IRS mileage rate. Mileage will be calculated as actual miles traveled and should
be reported on a monthly basis.

e Library trustees are eligible for lodging expense reimbursement related to
attending FVRL board meetings when the mileage to the meeting location
requires the board member to travel more than 150 miles round trip to attend,
or when inclement weather would prevent a return home after a board meeting.
Applicable reimbursable lodging expenses require:

1. The cost of moderate accommodations as defined by the IRS per diem
rates, within the destination area, will be used as the benchmark for the
cost of reasonably priced lodging

2. Actual cost of hotel, motel or rental property accommodations, including
lodging taxes and parking fees included in any hotel or motel bill, shall be
paid. Receipts are required for all hotel/motel/rental stays will be
submitted to the Executive Director’s Office within one week of the
expense being incurred.

e Meals may be reimbursed at the per diem rate for an overnight stay. Meals may
also be reimbursed for Board Members when travel time and FVRL meeting time
exceeds four (4) hours combined. See the Travel and Subsistence Policy for
further details about meal reimbursement.

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 ¢ 360-906-5000 e fvrl.org

Library locations: Battle Ground, Cascade Park, Goldendale, La Center, North Bonneville, Ridgefield, Stevenson,
Three Creeks, Vancouver, Vancouver Mall, Washougal, White Salmon Valley, Woodland, Yacolt, Yale

Page 69 of 78



FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

\ I ra r I e S Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and

e Library trustees are eligible for pre-authorized library related training and
conferences. See the Travel and Subsistence Policy for details.

Any personal expenses or entertainment expenses are strictly prohibited.

Approved by Board of Trustees: Original Policy , 2024.

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 ¢ 360-906-5000 e fvrl.org

Library locations: Battle Ground, Cascade Park, Goldendale, La Center, North Bonneville, Ridgefield, Stevenson,
Three Creeks, Vancouver, Vancouver Mall, Washougal, White Salmon Valley, Woodland, Yacolt, Yale

Page 70 of 78



FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

\\ FVRLibrari
\ I rarIeS Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and

Public Records Requests Policy

It is the policy of the Fort Vancouver Regional Library District (“FVRL”) to release public records in
compliance with the Washington State Public Records Act, set forth in Chapter 42.56 of the Revised
Code of Washington (“RCW”), and any other applicable provisions of federal or state law. The Public
Records Policy (“Policy”) applies to library system records created and retained by staff, administrators,
the Board of Trustees, and any third-party records in FVRL's possession to the extent not exempt from
disclosure pursuant to state law or any applicable law.

Purpose
The purpose of this Policy is to comply with Chapter 42.56 RCW, the Public Records Act. This document

provides guidance to public records requesters, as well as FVRL employees who respond to such
requests.

Public Records Officer
FVRL has designated the Communications and Marketing Director as the official Public Records Officer

(“PRO") for the FVRL. While the individual serving as the PRO may change over-time, requestors can
find current contact information for the PRO on the FVRL website. The PRO is responsible for
managing the disclosure of public records to ensure compliance with the law, responding to and
tracking requests or designating another individual to respond, and serves as the principal contact
with any requester making a public records request. Any person wishing to request, inspect, or seek
assistance regarding FVRL's public records should contact the PRO as follows:

Public Records Officer

Fort Vancouver Regional Library District
2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver, WA 98661
Telephone: 360-906-5010

Email: public_records@fvrl.org

Types and Availability of Records
FVRL makes certain public records available on its website including, but not limited to FVLR board

meeting agendas, board meeting minutes, financial reports, and budget documents. FVRL complies
with applicable public records retention and disclosure laws and strives to follow best practices in
implementing the Policy.

Pursuant to RCW 42.56.070(4), FVRL finds that it is not required to maintain a current index of public
records because the requirement is unduly burdensome and would interfere with FVRL operations as
stated in the Board Resolution No. 2024-08 adopted by the Board of Trustees on

Public records are available for inspection and copying at FVRL's Operations Center in Vancouver, WA,
from 9:00am-5:00pm, Monday-Friday.

Page 71 of 78



Submitting Requests

All requests either for inspection or for copies (paper or electronic) of public records should be in
writing addressed to the Public Records Officer and may be sent by mail, e-mail to
public_records@fvrl.org or fax or delivered in person to the FVRL Operations Center or any branch

library.

Any person wishing to inspect or receive copies of public records of FVRL should include the following
information in the public records request:
1. Name of requestor, the date and time of the request;
2. A means of communicating to the requester, such as mailing address, telephone number,
and email address;
3. Description of the public records requested with details of the records being sought and date
ranges that are adequate for the PRO to do a reasonable search to identify and locate the public

records; and
4. Whether the requester is seeking to inspect the record(s) or if copies are being requested.

FVRL will respond to all Public Records Act requests within five (5) business days in compliance with
RCW 42.56.520. The FVRL response to the requester may include:
a. Notifying the requester that the documents are available for inspection or copying;
b. Acknowledging the request was received in writing and providing a reasonable estimate
of the time the FVRL will require to provide a first installment or complete the request;
c. Seeking clarification from the requester;
d. Identifying the physical location or internet site where the documents are available to
the public; or
e. Denying the public records request.

Processing Requests
The PRO will process requests in an order that allows requests to be processed most efficiently. When

FVRL receives a public record request or at any time while processing a public record request, the PRO
will determine a reasonable time estimate within which FVRL can respond to the request that will factor
in the nature, volume, and availability of the requested records; the amount of time necessary to
respond to a particular request and its effect on the amount of staff time that can be devoted to
responding to the requests of other requesters; and the impact on other essential FVRL functions.
Specific factors that may affect the response time estimate include, but are not limited to:

a. Number of pending requests from the same requester;
Volume of records requested;
Complexity or ambiguity of the request;
Access to database or electronic system records;
Information Technology (IT) staff involvement;
Records not easily identified, located, and/or accessible;
Current staffing, including any amount of time needed by District staff who are not
primarily responsible for public record processing;
h. Third-party notice;
i. Complex review to determine if content is exempt;
j- Extensive and complicated electronic redaction;

@ o oo o

Page 72 of 78



k. Legal review;
l.  Resolving issues related to retention of responsive records; and/or
m. Grouped requests.

To provide fullest assistance to all requesters and prevent excessive interference with other
essential FVRL functions, FVRL may allocate specific amounts of time and resources to responding to
a request. This may include, but is not limited to, allocating a specific number of hours per week or
per month to be spent by public records staff or employees for whom responding to record
requests is not among their primary assigned duties. The amount of time shall be based on the
factors outlined above.

When a request is complicated or for a large volume of records, FVRL may elect to provide records on
an installment basis. If a requester does not contact the PRO within thirty (30) days to arrange for the
review of the installment, FVRL may deem the request abandoned and stop fulfilling the remainder of
the request.

Denial and Appeal

FVRL reserves the right to deny requests for public records under provisions of the Public Records Act,
RCW Ch. 42.56, and will provide a written statement of the specific exemption authorizing the
withholding of the record (or part) and a brief explanation of how the exemption applies to the record
withheld.

FVRL is not required to accept certain automated or bot requests. FVRL may deny multiple automated
or bot requests from a requester in a 24-hour period. FVRL does not accept voice mail record requests
or requests through social media platforms, because social media and voicemails are not monitored
daily.

FVRL has an appeal process and encourages any requester who believes a public record has been
wrongfully withheld or redacted (in whole or in part), to submit the appeal in writing to the PRO stating
the reasons for the appeal. Requesters are also encouraged to meet and confer with the PRO prior to
seeking secondary review.

Exemptions

FVRL applies exemptions for public records requests in compliance with the exemptions provided under
the Washington Public Records Act, Chapter 42.56 RCW. Some records are exempt from disclosure, in
whole or in part. If FVLR believes that a record is exempt from disclosure and should be withheld, the
PRO will state the specific exemption and provide a brief explanation of why the record or a portion of
the record is being withheld. If only a portion of a record is exempt from disclosure, but the remainder
is not exempt, the PRO will redact the exempt portions, provide the non-exempt portions, and inform
the requester why portions of the record are redacted.

For informational purposes, under the Washington Public Records Act, Chapter 42.56 RCW, the records
exempt from disclosure include, but are not limited to:

Library Records of Individual Users. Any library record subject to RCW 42.56.310, as
interpreted by FVRL’s Confidentiality of Patron and Circulation Records Policy, is exempt

from disclosure and will not be released under the Public Records Act.
Page 73 of 78



Public Records Act Exemptions. The Public Records Act exempts several categories of
documents and records from disclosure under RCW 42.56.210 et seq. Documents falling into
any of these categories may be withheld from disclosure under the Public Records Act.

Commercial Purposes. FVRL is prohibited from disclosing lists of individuals for commercial
purposes as provided in RCW 42.56.070. If a request includes a list of individuals, FVRL shall
require that the requestor provide information necessary to determine if disclosure of the list of
individuals is permitted or prohibited by RCW 42.56.070(8).

Address Confidentiality for Victims of Domestic Violence, Sexual Assault, and Stalking. Any
employee’s name and other personally identifying information if they or a dependent are
survivors of domestic violence, sexual assault, sexual abuse, stalking, or harassment, or if they
participate in the address confidential program under chapter 40.24 RCW (RCW 42.56.250(1)(i)).

Other Exemptions

In addition to the exemptions provided under the Public Records Act, Washington provides
several additional exemptions that are not listed in the Public Records Act. A non-exclusive
list of these exemptions is available at: Public Records Act for Washington Cities, Counties,
and Special Purpose Districts (mrsc.org). Documents falling into any exemption recognized by
Washington statute, or otherwise under local, state, or federal law, may be withheld.

Third-Party Rights

Prior to releasing a record, FVRL may, at its sole discretion, provide notice to an individual or
organization named in a public record or to whom the record specifically pertains (unless notice is
required by law) to allow the third-party to seek relief pursuant to RCW 42.56.540. FVRL may take into
account any such third-party notification, including the time necessary for any request for injunction or
other relief under RCW 42.56.540 to be resolved, in providing an estimate for when the records will be
available. Nothing in this Policy is intended to create any third-party right to notice of Public Records Act

requests.

Fees
RCW 42.56.120 allows for a reasonable charge for printed copies to be imposed for producing

copies of public records including the actual costs directly incident to such copying, including
customized service charge when a staff member’s expertise is required to locate and fill the request.

All copies of public records with the exceptions noted above, will incur a charge of 15¢ per page (subject
to change) to reproduce and cover the postage cost, if mailed. Public records provided electronically will
generally be provided without charge.

At their discretion, the PRO may elect to waive these fees. Fees may generally be waived when
the expense of billing exceeds the cost of copying and postage.

If charges related to copying have not been paid by the requester, the PRO may withhold the relevant
documents from disclosure until outstanding fees are paid by the requester.

Page 74 of 78



Law Enforcement Requests
FVRL may consult with legal counsel before the release of information to law enforcement. Law

enforcement will receive access to confidential library records upon receipt of process, order, or
subpoena in proper form and with a showing of good cause for its issuance.

Delivery of Records
Documents are available for inspection by appointment at FVRL's Operations Center in Vancouver, WA,

during Monday through Friday, 9:00am — 5:00pm, excluding legal holidays or upon official closure of
FVRL. Arrangements for inspection and/or copying must be made in advance. To schedule an
appointment, email public_records@fvrl.org or contact the Public Records Officer at 360-906-5010.

Inspection of public records must occur in a non-disruptive manner. No member of the public may
remove public records from the viewing area or disassemble, destroy or alter any public record. The
requester shall indicate which records they wish to have copied using a mutually agreed upon non-
permanent method of marking the desired record.

On request, physical or electronic copies may be made available to the requester. FVRL may determine

the method of production for electronic records at its own discretion if the electronic files are too large
to be shared via email. FVRL will not provide records on portable media (e.g. thumb drives) provided by
a requester or by uploading to a private file-sharing site.

Failure to Respond
FVRL will deem a request abandoned in the following circumstances:
1. If a requester fails to respond to a FVLR request to clarify, whether individual or grouped, within
thirty (30) days of the request for clarification, and the entire request is unclear;
2. If a requester has elected to inspect records, the request, whether individual or grouped,
may be deemed abandoned:

a. If the requester fails to contact the PRO to arrange for the review of the installment
within thirty (30) days of making arrangements to inspect the records in person.

b. If the requester misses an appointment to inspect responsive records or any installment
of records and fails to contact the PRO to arrange another appointment to inspect within
30 days of the original request.

3. If arequester has elected to receive copies of records, a request, whether individual or
grouped, may be deemed abandoned:

a. If the requester fails to open and download within thirty (30) days copies of
responsive records or any installment of records provided to the requester
electronically.

b. If the requester fails to pick up hard copies of responsive records or any installment of
records within thirty (30) days of the date on which such copies are made available for
pickup.

c. If the requester fails to pay for copies of any records or any installment of records
within thirty (30) days of receiving an invoice for those records.

Closing the Request

Page 75 of 78



Once all copies of requested records have been provided to the requester, the requester has reviewed
the requested records, or thirty (30) days have passed since the requester was notified that the
records were available and the requester has failed to contact the PRO to arrange for the review of
those records or for payment for copies, the PRO shall close the records request.

Disclaimer of Liability

Neither the FVRL nor any employee, official, trustee or custodian shall be held personally liable, nor
shall a cause of action exist, for any loss or damage, if the release of records was based upon a good
faith attempt to implement the Policy outlined in this document and in accordance with the

Washington Public Records Act.

Implementation
This Policy will be implemented by the Public Records Officer, as delegated by the Library Executive
Director. The PRO is expected to make every effort to apply these rules in a fair, consistent, reasonable,

and positive manner.

Any person requesting public records who questions the way this Policy has been applied, may use the
appeal process established by the Appeal Rights of Patrons Policy.

Board Approved
This Policy fully supersedes and replaces all previous Public Records Policy documents for FVRL.

Adopted: , 2024

Page 76 of 78



FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NUMBER (2024-08)
A RESOLUTION TO DECLARE PUBLIC DISCLOSURE INDEXING AS UNDULY BURDENSOME AS

REQUIRED BY RCW 42.56.070

The regular meeting of the Fort Vancouver Regional Library District (FVRL) Board of Trustees was held
(date) at (library) Community Library, attended by a quorum of the Board for the conduct of such
business; and, after due consideration and deliberation, the following resolution was duly passed by a
majority vote of all Trustees then attending.

WHEREAS, RCW 42.56.070 requires all public agencies to maintain and make available a current
index of public records; and,

WHEREAS, RCW 42.56.070(4) provides that a local agency may opt-out of maintaining such an
index if it would be unduly burdensome or interfere with agency operations, and an agency
must issue and publish a formal order specifying the reasons why compliance would be unduly

burdensome; and,

WHEREAS, RCW 42.56.070 further provides that all indexes currently in existence and
maintained by FVRL must be made available to the public for public inspection; and,

WHEREAS, FVRL did not budget for and lacks revenue to hire additional staff members for the
sole purpose of processing public records requests and/or creating and maintaining such
comprehensive indexes of public records; and,

WHEREAS, the creation and maintenance of an index would be extremely costly and would
provide little benefit to the public when compared to the expenses and impact on agency
operations of creating and maintaining such a comprehensive index; and,

WHEREAS, FVRL's records are diverse, complex, and stored in multiple computer systems,
formats, and/or databases, making it difficult if not impossible to maintain an accurate, all-

inclusive index; and

WHEREAS, FVRL recently updated its Public Records Act Policy to provide the fullest assistance
possible to the public who request public records and set forth policy and procedures that
strive to follow best practices in complying with the Washington State Public Records Act, RCW
Ch. 42.56;

Page 77 of 78



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that based on the findings set forth above and pursuant to
RCW 42.56.070(4), the Board of Trustees of the Fort Vancouver Regional Library District do
hereby order and direct that:

1) FVRLis not required to maintain a current index of public records due to the above
findings that the requirement is unduly burdensome and impacts agency operations due
to high costs and diversion of staff resources from essential tasks, and that such an
index would be difficult, if not impossible, to maintain; and,

2) FVRL shall make available for public inspection and/or copying all public records and any
indexes of public records currently in existence and maintained by FVRL pursuant to
RCW 42.56.070.

ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the FVRL Board of Trustees this day of , 2024,

Approved:

Kristy Morgan, Chair

Marie Coffey, Secretary

Page 78 of 78





